

Standard Bidding Documents

Procurement of Works by Open Tender

AFRICAN UNION DEVELOPMENT AGENCY -NEPAD

Design and Build of a 100 kw Solar PV Generating System in to drive climate smart technology (hydroponic/aquaponic/drip irrigation) application in Addare/Niger

Procurement Number: 2/AUDA/DPDC/ENV/RFB/W/2020

Date of Issue: May 13, 2020

Table of Contents

Section I. Invitation for Bids	1
Section II. Instructions to Bidders	3
Table of Clauses	3
Section III. Bidding Data	20
ITB Clause 9.1	22
Section IV. Forms of Bid, Qualification Information, Letter of Acceptance ar	nd
Agreement	24
Contractor's Bid	25
Qualification Information	27
Letter of Acceptance	
Agreement	34
Section V. Conditions of Contract	35
Table of Clauses	
Section VI. Contract Data	57
Section VII. Specifications	61
Section VIII. Drawings	68
Section IX. Bill of Quantities	69
Section X. Security Forms	70
Notes on Forms of Securities	70
Annex A Form: Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)	71
Annex B Form : Performance Security - Unconditional Bank Guarantee	
Annex C Form: Bank Guarantee for Advance Payment	73



1

Section I. Invitation for Bids

Invitation for Bids (IFB)

AFRICAN UNION DEVELOPMENT AGENCY -NEPAD

Design and Build of a 100 kw Solar PV Generating System to drive climate smart technology (hydroponic/aquaponic/drip irrigation) application in Addare/Niger

Procurement Number: 2/AUDA/DPDC/ENV/RFB/W/2020

1. The African Union Development Agency-NEPAD (AUDA-NEPAD) has allocated funds for the procurement of works for Design and Build of an integrated system to empower rural communities. The system of 100 kw Solar PV Generating System to drive climate smart technology (hydroponic/aquaponic/drip irrigation or any other climate smart tech suitable to the local condition),application, increase access to clean water and light up community health care facility in Addare/Niger and now invites sealed bids from eligible bidders for:

Deployment of 100 kw Solar PV Generating System to drive climate smart technology (hydroponic/aquaponic/drip irrigation or any other climate smart tech suitable to the local condition), application, increase access to clean water and light up community health care facility in Addare/Niger with a 1-month maintenance and operation services.

- 2. Bidding is open to all contractors who can demonstrate that they have:
 - a) Valid registration as a contractor for the similar works in Niger;
 - b) Completed at least two (2) similar contracts in the last five years;
 - c) At least ten (10) year record of similar experience in design, construction, maintenance and operation of this integrated technology; and
 - d) Enough financial and human resources to execute the project.
- 3. Interested bidders may obtain further information by emailing <u>bathom@nepad.org</u>. A complete set of the bidding document in English may be downloaded (in read only form) from AUDA-NEPAD website (<u>www.nepad.org/work-with-us/procurement</u>) by interested bidders on submission of a written application to email: <u>bathom@nepad.org</u>.
- 4. African Union Emergency Procurement Guidelines will be used for this procurement;

5. A Pre-Bid meeting will take place at the following date, time and place:

Date: May 19, 2020 Time: 14.00 hours (South African Time) Place: Online (dial in details will be shared with applicants at least a day before the meeting)

- Bids must be delivered to the address below on or before 14.30hrs (South Africa time) on May 27, 2020.
- 7. All bids must be accompanied by:
 - □ bid securing declaration;
 - □ Manufactures Authorization for solar PV equipment.
- 8. Bids will be opened on *May* 27, 2020 at 14.30hrs (South Africa time) in the presence of bidders or bidders' representatives who choose to attend, through an online platform (details to be shared with applicants) at the address below. Late bids will be rejected and returned unopened to bidders.

The Chairperson Internal Procurement Committee (IPC)

AUDA-NEPAD 230, 15th Road, P. O. Box 218 Midrand, 1685 Johannesburg, South Africa Email: procurement@nepad.org

Attention of: Head of Procurement Division

Section II. Instructions to Bidders Table of Clauses

A.	General.		4
	1.	Scope of Bid	4
	2.	Source of Funds	4
	3.	Eligible Bidders	4
	4.	Qualification of the Bidder	4
	5.	One Bid per Bidder	7
	6.	Cost of Bidding	7
	7.	Site Visit	7
R	Ridding	Documents	7
р.	8.	Content of Bidding Documents	
	0. 9.	Clarification of Bidding Documents	
). 10.	Amendment of Bidding Documents	
	10.	Amendment of Blooming Documents	0
C.	-	tion of Bids	
	11.	Language of Bid	
	12.	Documents Comprising the Bid	
	13.	Bid Prices	
	14.	Currencies of Bid and Payment	9
	15.	Bid Validity	9
	16.	Bid Security	10
	17.	Alternative Proposals by Bidders	
	18.	Format and Signing of Bid	11
D	Submissi	ion of Bids	11
υ.	19.	Sealing and Marking of Bids	
	19. 20.	Deadline for Submission of Bids	
	20. 21.	Late Bids	
	21.	Modification and Withdrawal of Bids	
	<i>LL</i> .		12
E.	-	ning and Evaluation	
	23.	Bid Opening	
	24.	Process to Be Confidential	
	25.	Clarification of Bids and Contacting the Employer	
	26.	Examination of Bids and Determination of Responsiveness	
	27.	Correction of Errors	
	28.	Currency for Bid Evaluation	15
	29.	Evaluation and Comparison of Bids	15
	30.	Margin of Preference	16
F	Award of	f Contract	
1.	31.	Award Criteria	
	31.	Employer's Right to Accept any Bid and to Reject any or all Bids	
	32. 33.	Notification of Award and Signing of Agreement	
	33. 34.	Performance Security	
	34. 35.	Advance Payment and Security	
	33. 36.	Advance Payment and Security	
	36. 37.	Corrupt or Fraudulent Practices	

Instructions to Bidders

A. General

- Scope of Bid
 1.1 The Employer as defined in the Bidding and Contract Data, invites bids for the construction of Works, as described in the Bidding and Contract Data. The name and procurement number of the Contract is provided in the Bidding and Contract Data.
 - 1.2 The successful Bidder will be expected to complete the Works by the Intended Completion Date specified in the Contract Data.
- 2. Source of Funds
 2.1 The African Union Commission (AUC) (hereinafter called "the Employer") has an approved budget for the cost of the Works specified in the Bidding Data, and intends to apply a portion of the funding to eligible payments under a contract for which this Invitation for Bids is issued. Details of any funding provided to cover eligible payments under the Contract in addition to that provided directly by the African Union are given in the Bidding Data.
- 3. Eligible 3.1 This Invitation for Bids is open to all bidders from eligible countries as defined in the Bidding Data. Any materials, equipment, and services to be used in the performance of the Contract shall have their origin in eligible source countries.
 - 3.2 All bidders shall provide in Section IV, Forms of Bid and Qualification Information, a statement that the Bidder (including all members of a joint venture and subcontractors) is not associated, nor has been associated in the past, directly or indirectly, with the consultant or any other entity that has prepared the design, specifications, and other documents for the Project or being proposed as Project Manager for the Contract. A firm that has been engaged by the Employer to provide consulting services for the preparation or supervision of the Works, and any of its affiliates, shall not be eligible to bid.
 - 3.3 Bidders must not be under a declaration of suspension for corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices issued by the African Union in accordance with ITB Clause 37.1.
- **4. Qualification** of Bidders
 4.1 All bidders shall provide in Section IV, Forms of Bid and Qualification Information, a preliminary description of the proposed work method and schedule, including drawings and charts, as necessary.
 - 4.2 If a formal prequalification of potential bidders has been undertaken, only bids from prequalified bidders will be considered for award of Contract. These qualified bidders should submit with their bids any information updating their original prequalification applications or, alternatively, confirm in their bids that the
 - 4

originally submitted prequalification information remains essentially correct as of the date of bid submission. The update or confirmation should be provided in Section IV.

- 4.3 If the Employer has not undertaken prequalification of potential bidders, all bidders shall include the following information and documents with their bids in Section IV, unless otherwise stated in the Bidding Data:
 - (a) copies of original documents defining the constitution or legal status, place of registration, and principal place of business; written power of attorney of the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder;
 - (b) total monetary value of construction work performed for each of the last five years;
 - (c) experience in works of a similar nature and size for each of the last five years, and details of work under way or contractually committed; and clients who may be contacted for further information on those contracts;
 - (d) major items of construction equipment proposed to carry out the Contract;
 - (e) qualifications and experience of key site management and technical personnel proposed for the Contract;
 - (f) reports on the financial standing of the Bidder, such as profit and loss statements and auditor's reports for the past five years;
 - (g) evidence of adequacy of working capital for this Contract (access to line(s) of credit and availability of other financial resources);
 - (h) authority to seek references from the Bidder's bankers;
 - (i) information regarding any litigation, current or during the last five years, in which the Bidder is involved, the parties concerned, and disputed amount; and
 - (j) proposals for subcontracting components of the Works amounting to more than 10 percent of the Contract Price.
- 4.4 Bids submitted by a joint venture of two or more firms as partners shall comply with the following requirements, unless otherwise stated in the Bidding Data:
 - (a) the Bid shall include all the information listed in ITB Clause4.3 above for each joint venture partner;

- (b) the Bid shall be signed to be legally binding on all partners;
- (c) all partners shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms;
- (d) one of the partners will be nominated as being in charge, authorised to incur liabilities, and receive instructions for and on behalf of any and all partners of the joint venture; and
- (e) the execution of the entire Contract, including payment, shall be done exclusively with the partner in charge.
- 4.5 To qualify for award of the Contract, bidders shall meet the following minimum qualifying criteria:
 - (a) annual volume of construction work of at least the amount specified in the Bidding Data;
 - (b) experience as prime contractor in the construction of at least two works of a nature and complexity equivalent to the Works over the last 10 years (to comply with this requirement, works cited should be at least 70 percent complete);
 - (c) proposals for the timely acquisition (own, lease, hire, etc.) of the essential equipment listed in the Bidding Data;
 - (d) key personnel required for the performance of the contract with the qualifications and experience detailed in the Bidding Data; and
 - (e) liquid assets and/or credit facilities, net of other contractual commitments and exclusive of any advance payments which may be made under the Contract, of no less than the amount specified in the Bidding Data.

A consistent history of litigation or arbitration awards against the Applicant or any partner of a Joint Venture may result in disqualification.

4.6 The figures for each of the partners of a joint venture shall be added together to determine the Bidder's compliance with the minimum qualifying criteria of ITB Clause 4.5(a) and (e); however, for a joint venture to qualify, each of its partners must meet at least 25 percent of minimum criteria 4.5(a), (b), and (e) for an individual Bidder, and the partner in charge at least 40 percent of those minimum criteria. Failure to comply with this requirement will result in rejection of the joint venture's Bid. Subcontractors' experience and resources will not be considered

in determining the Bidder's compliance with the qualifying criteria, unless otherwise stated in the Bidding Data.

- 4.7 African Union bidders and joint ventures of African Union and foreign bidders applying for eligibility for any margin of preference in bid evaluation as stated in the Bidding Data, shall supply all information to satisfy the criteria for eligibility as described in ITB Clause 30.
- 5. One Bid per Bidder
 5.1 Each Bidder shall submit only one Bid, either individually or as a partner in a joint venture. A Bidder who submits or participates in more than one Bid (other than as a subcontractor or in cases of alternatives that have been permitted or requested) will cause all the proposals with the Bidder's participation to be disqualified.
- 6. Cost of Bidding6.1 The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of his Bid, and the Employer will in no case be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.
- 7. Site Visit
 7.1 The Bidder, at the Bidder's own responsibility and risk, is encouraged to visit and examine the Site of Works and its surroundings and obtain all information that may be necessary for preparing the Bid and entering into a contract for construction of the Works. The costs of visiting the Site shall be at the Bidder's own expense.

B. Bidding Documents

8. Content of Bidding
 Bocuments
 8.1 The set of bidding documents comprises the documents listed in the table below, and addenda issued in accordance with Clause 10:

Section I Invitation to Bid

- II Instructions to Bidders
- III Bidding Data
- IV Forms of Bid and Qualification Information
- V Conditions of Contract
- VI Contract Data
- VII Specifications
- VIII Drawings
- IX Activity Schedule
- X Forms of Securities
- 8.2 The documents to be completed by the bidder as part of the bid are contained in Sections IV, IX, and X, and the number of copies of the bid required to be submitted by the bidder is defined in the Bidding Data.
- 9. Clarification of 9.1 A prospective Bidder requiring any clarification of the bidding documents may notify the Employer in writing or by telex, e-mail and facsimile at the Employer's address indicated in the Bidding

Data. The Employer will respond to any request for clarification received earlier than 21 days prior to the deadline for submission of bids. Written copies of the Employer's response will be sent to all prospective bidders that have received the bidding documents including a description of the inquiry, but without identifying its source.

- 10. Amendment of Bidding
 Documents
 10.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the Employer may modify the bidding documents by issuing addenda.
 - 10.2 Any addendum thus issued shall be part of the bidding documents and shall be communicated in writing to all prospective bidders that have received the bidding documents. Prospective bidders shall acknowledge receipt of each addendum in writing to the Employer.
 - 10.3 To give prospective bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their bids, the Employer may extend, as necessary, the deadline for submission of bids, in accordance with ITB Clause 20.2 below.

C. Preparation of Bids

- **11. Language of**
Bid11.1 All documents relating to the Bid shall be in the English language
unless otherwise specified in the Bidding Data.
- 12. Documents
 Comprising
 the Bid
 (a) The Bid (in the format indicated in Section IV);
 - (b) Bid Security;
 - (c) Activity Schedule;
 - (d) Qualification Information Form and Documents;
 - (e) Alternative offers where invited;

and any other materials required to be completed and submitted by bidders, as specified in the Bidding Data.

- **13. Bid Prices** 13.1 The Contract shall be for the whole Works, as described in Sub-Clause 1.1, based on the priced Activity Schedule submitted by the Bidder.
 - 13.2 The Bidder shall fill in rates and prices for all items of the Works described in the Activity Schedule Items for which no rate or price is entered by the Bidder will not be paid for by the Employer when executed and shall be deemed covered by the other rates and prices in the Bill of Quantities.
 - 13.3 In completing the Bid Form, the Bidder shall note the provisions of Clause 45 of the Conditions of Contract in respect of Taxes and Duties. Prices should be quoted net of duties and taxes already

payable on major equipment, materials, fittings and fixtures that are subject to the African Union exemption on payment of duties and taxes. All other duties, taxes, and other levies payable by the Contractor under the Contract, or for any other cause, as of the date 28 days prior to the deadline for submission of bids, shall be included in the total Bid price submitted by the Bidder.

- 13.4 The lump sum price quoted by the Bidder shall not be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract unless provided for in the Bidding and Contract Data and the provisions of Clause 47 of the Conditions of Contract. The Bidder shall submit with the Bid all the information required under the Contract Data and Clause 47 of the Conditions of Contract.
- 14. Currencies of 14.1 The lump sum price shall be quoted by the Bidder in US Dollars, **Bid and** unless otherwise stated in the Bidding Data. Where indicated in the Bidding Data, payment may be partially made in foreign **Payment** currencies. Foreign currency requirements shall be indicated as a percentage of the Bid price (excluding provisional sums) and shall be payable at the option of the Bidder in foreign currencies in accordance with the limitations stated in the Bidding Data.
 - 14.2 Where applicable, the rates of exchange to be used by the Bidder in arriving at the US Dollar equivalent and the percentage(s) mentioned in ITB Clause 14.1 above, shall be the selling rates established by the authority specified in the Contract Data prevailing on the date 28 days prior to the deadline for submission of bids. These exchange rates shall apply for all payments so that no exchange risk will be borne by the Bidder. If the Bidder uses other rates of exchange, the provisions of ITB Clause 28.1 shall apply. In any case, payments will be computed using the rates quoted in the Bid.
 - 14.3 Where applicable, Bidders shall indicate details of their expected foreign currency requirements in the Bid.
 - 14.4 Where applicable, Bidders may be required by the Employer to clarify their foreign currency requirements and to substantiate that the amounts included in the Lump Sum and in the Contract Data are reasonable and responsive to ITB Clause 14.1.

15. Bid Validity 15.1 Bids shall remain valid for the period specified in the Bidding Data after the date of bid submission prescribed by the Employer. A bid valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Employer as nonresponsive.

15.2 In exceptional circumstances, the Employer may request that the bidders extend the period of validity for a specified additional period. The request and the bidders' responses shall be made in writing. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting the Bid Security. A Bidder agreeing to the request will not be required or

permitted to otherwise modify the Bid but will be required to extend the validity of Bid Security for the period of the extension, and in compliance with Clause 16 in all respects.

- 15.3 In the case of fixed price contracts, if the award is delayed by a period exceeding sixty (60) days beyond the expiry of the initial bid validity, the contract price may be increased by a factor specified in the request for extension. Bid evaluation will be based on the Bid prices without taking the above correction into consideration.
- **16. Bid Security** 16.1 The Bidder shall furnish, as part of the Bid, a Bid Security in US Dollars or in a freely convertible currency, in the amount or the equivalent amount specified in the Bidding Data.
 - 16.2 The Bid Security shall, at the Bidder's option, be in the form of a certified banker's cheque or a bank guarantee from a reputable bank. Bank guarantees issued by foreign banks shall only be acceptable if endorsed by a correspondent bank in the Country specified for performance of the works. The format of the Bid Security should be in accordance with the form of Bid Security included in Section X. Bid Security shall be valid for a minimum of thirty (30) days beyond the validity of the Bid.
 - 16.3 Any bid not accompanied by an acceptable Bid Security shall be rejected by the Employer. The Bid Security of a joint venture must define as "bidder" all joint venture partners and list them in the following manner: a joint venture consisting of "_____," and "_____."
 - 16.4 The Bid Security of unsuccessful bidders will be returned within thirty (30) days of the end of the Bid validity period specified in ITB Clause 15.1.
 - 16.5 The Bid Security of the successful Bidder will be discharged when the Bidder has signed the Agreement and furnished the required Performance Security.
 - 16.6 The Bid Security may be forfeited
 - (a) if the Bidder withdraws the Bid after Bid opening during the period of Bid validity;
 - (b) if the Bidder does not accept the correction of the Bid price, pursuant to ITB Clause 27; or
 - (c) in the case of a successful Bidder, if the Bidder fails within the specified time limit to
 - (i) sign the contract; or

(ii) furnish the required Performance Security.

17. Alternative Proposals by Bidders 17.1 Bidders shall submit offers that comply with the requirements of the bidding documents, including the basic technical design as indicated in the drawings and specifications. Alternatives will not be considered, unless specifically allowed in the Bidding Data. If

so allowed, ITB Clause 17.2 below shall govern.

- 17.2 If so allowed in the Bidding Data, bidders wishing to offer technical alternatives to the requirements of the bidding documents must also submit a Bid that complies with the requirements of the bidding documents, including the basic technical design as indicated in the drawings and specifications. In addition to submitting the basic Bid, the Bidder shall provide all information necessary for a complete evaluation of the alternative by the Employer, including design calculations, technical specifications, breakdown of prices, proposed construction methods and other relevant details. Only the technical alternatives, if any, of the lowest evaluated cost Bidder conforming to the basic technical requirements shall be considered by the Employer.
- 18. Format and Signing of Bid18.1 The Bidder shall prepare an original and the number of copies of the bid indicated in the Bidding Data, clearly marking each "ORIGINAL BID" and "COPY OF BID," as appropriate. In the event of any discrepancy between them, the original shall govern.
 - 18.2 The original and all copies of the Bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person or persons duly authorised to sign on behalf of the Bidder, pursuant to ITB Clauses 4.3(a) or 4.4(b), as the case may be. All pages of the Bid where entries or amendments have been made shall be initialled by the person or persons signing the Bid.
 - 18.3 The Bid shall contain no alterations or additions, except those to comply with instructions issued by the Employer, or as necessary to correct errors made by the Bidder, in which case such corrections shall be initialled by the person or persons signing the Bid.
 - 18.4 The Bidder shall furnish information as described in the Form of Bid on commissions or gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents relating to this Bid, and to contract execution if the Bidder is awarded the contract.

D. Submission of Bids

- 19. Sealing and Marking of Bids
- 19.1 The Bidder shall seal the original and all copies of the Bid in two inner envelopes, and one outer envelope sealed with red wax, duly marking the inner envelopes as "ORIGINAL" and "COPIES".

Bids

- 19.2 The inner and outer envelopes shall
 - be addressed to the Employer at the address provided in the (a) Bidding Data;
 - (b) bear the name and procurement number of the Contract as defined in the Bidding Data; and
 - (c) provide a warning not to open before the specified time and date for Bid opening as defined in the Bidding Data.
- 19.3 In addition to the identification required in ITB Clause 19.2, the inner envelopes shall indicate the name and address of the Bidder to enable the Bid to be returned unopened in case it is declared late, pursuant to ITB Clause 21.
- 19.4 If the outer envelope is not sealed and marked as above, the Employer will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the Bid.
- **20. Deadline for** 20.1 Bids shall be delivered to the Employer at the address specified above no later than the time and date specified in the Bidding Data. Submission of Bids
 - 20.2 The Employer may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for submission of bids by issuing an amendment in accordance with ITB Clause 10, in which case all rights and obligations of the Employer and the bidders previously subject to the original deadline will then be subject to the new deadline as extended.
- 21. Late Bids 21.1 Any Bid received by the Employer after the deadline for submission of bids prescribed by the Employer pursuant to ITB Clause 20 will be rejected and returned unopened to the Bidder.
- 22. Modification 22.1 Bidders may modify, substitute or withdraw their bids by giving notice in writing to the Employer before the deadline prescribed and for submission of bids in ITB Clause 20. Withdrawal of
 - 22.2 Any modification or withdrawal notices shall be prepared, sealed, marked, and delivered in accordance with ITB Clauses 18 and 19, with the outer and inner envelopes additionally marked "MODIFICATION", "WITHDRAWAL," or "REPLACEMENT BID" as appropriate. A withdrawal notice may also be sent by fax or E-mail, but followed by a signed confirmation copy, postmarked not later than the deadline for submission of bids.
 - 22.3 No Bid may be modified after the deadline for submission of Bids.
 - 22.4 Withdrawal of a Bid between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of Bid validity specified in the Bidding Data or as extended pursuant to ITB Clause 15.2 may

result in the forfeiture of the Bid Security pursuant to ITB Clause 16.

22.5 Bidders may only offer discounts to, or otherwise modify the prices of their bids by inclusion in the original Bid submission or by submitting Bid modifications in accordance with this clause.

E. Bid Opening and Evaluation

- 23. Bid Opening 23.1 The Employer will open the bids in the presence of the bidders or bidders' representatives who choose to attend at the time, on the date and at the place specified in the Bidding Data. The bidders or bidders' representatives who are present shall sign an attendance sheet.
 - 23.2 Envelopes marked "WITHDRAWAL" shall be opened and read out first. Bids for which an acceptable notice of withdrawal has been submitted pursuant to Clause 22 shall be returned un-opened to the Bidder.
 - 23.3 The bidders' names, the Bid prices, the total amount of each Bid and of any alternative Bid (if alternatives have been requested or permitted), any discounts, Bid modifications and withdrawals, the presence or absence of Bid Security, and such other details as the Employer may consider appropriate, will be announced by the Employer at the opening.
 - 23.4 The Employer will prepare minutes of the Bid opening, including the information disclosed to those present in accordance with ITB Clause 23.
- 24. Process to Be 24.1 Information relating to the examination, clarification, evaluation, and comparison of bids and recommendations for the award of a contract shall not be disclosed to bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with such process until the award to the successful Bidder has been announced.
- 25. Clarification of Bids and Contacting the Employer
 25.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, and comparison of bids, the Employer may ask any Bidder for clarification of its Bid, including breakdowns of unit rates.¹ Requests for clarification and the response shall be in writing, but no change in the price or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted except as required to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Employer in the evaluation of the bids in accordance with ITB Clause 27.

¹ In lump sum contracts, delete "unit rates" and replace with "the prices in the Activity Schedule".

- 25.2 From the time of bid opening to the time of contract award, if any bidder wishes to contact the Employer on any matter related to the bid, it should do so in writing.
- 25.3 Any effort by the Bidder to influence the Employer in the Employer's bid evaluation, bid comparison or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of the Bidders' bid.
- 26. Examination of Bids and Determination of Responsiveness
 26.1 Prior to the detailed evaluation of bids, the Employer will determine whether each Bid (a) meets the eligibility criteria defined in ITB Clause 3; (b) has been properly signed; (c) is accompanied by the required Bid Security; and (d) is substantially responsive to the requirements of the bidding documents.
 - 26.2 A substantially responsive bid is one which conforms to all the terms, conditions, and specifications of the bidding documents, without material deviation or reservation. A material deviation or reservation is one (a) which affects in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Works; (b) which limits in any substantial way, inconsistent with the bidding documents, the Employer's rights or the Bidder's obligations under the Contract; or (c) whose rectification would affect unfairly the competitive position of other bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.
 - 26.3 If a Bid is not substantially responsive, it will be rejected by the Employer, and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction or withdrawal of the non-conforming deviation or reservation.
- 27. Correction of Errors27.1 Bids determined to be substantially responsive will be checked by the Employer for any arithmetic errors. Errors will be corrected by the Employer as follows:
 - (a) where there is a discrepancy between the amounts in figures and in words, the amount in words will govern; and
 - (b) where there is a discrepancy between the unit rate and the line item total resulting from multiplying the unit rate by the quantity, the unit rate as quoted will govern, unless in the opinion of the Employer there is an obviously gross misplacement of the decimal point in the unit rate, in which case the line item total as quoted will govern, and the unit rate will be corrected.
 - 27.2 The amount stated in the Bid will be adjusted by the Employer in accordance with the above procedure for the correction of errors and shall be considered as binding upon the Bidder. If the Bidder does not accept the corrected amount, the Bid will be rejected, and the Bid Security may be forfeited in accordance with ITB Clause 16.6(b).

28. Currency for 28.1 Bids will be evaluated as quoted in US Dollars in accordance with **Bid Evaluation** ITB Clause 14.1, unless a Bidder has used different exchange rates than those prescribed in ITB Clause 14.2, in which case the Bid will be first converted into the amounts payable in different currencies using the rates quoted in the Bid and then reconverted to US Dollars using the exchange rates prescribed in ITB Clause 14.2.

Comparison of Bids

- **29. Evaluation and** 29.1 The Employer will evaluate and compare only the bids determined to be substantially responsive in accordance with ITB Clause 26.
 - 29.2 In evaluating the bids, the Employer will determine for each Bid the evaluated Bid price by adjusting the Bid price as follows:
 - making any correction for errors pursuant to ITB Clause 27; (a)
 - excluding provisional sums and the provision, if any, for (b) contingencies in the Activity Schedule, but including Dayworks, where priced competitively;
 - making an appropriate adjustment for any other acceptable (c) variations, deviations, or alternative offers submitted in accordance with ITB Clause 17;
 - (d) making appropriate adjustments to reflect discounts or other price modifications offered in accordance with ITB Clause 22.5; and
 - duties and taxes already payable on major equipment, (e) materials, fittings and fixtures that are subject to the African Union exemption on payment of duties and taxes.
 - 29.3 The Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any variation, deviation, or alternative offer. Variations, deviations, and alternative offers and other factors which are in excess of the requirements of the bidding documents or otherwise result in unsolicited benefits for the Employer will not be taken into account in Bid evaluation.
 - 29.4 The estimated effect of any price adjustment conditions under ITB Clause 47 of the Conditions of Contract, during the period of implementation of the Contract, will not be taken into account in Bid evaluation.
 - 29.5 If bids are invited for individual lots and award of multiple contracts to individual bidders is permitted pursuant to ITB Clause 29.2(d), the methodology of evaluation and the application of any conditional discounts to determine the award of contracts shall be specified in the Bidding Data.

30. Margin of Preference

- 30.1 If so indicated in the Bidding Data, contractors from African Union Member States may receive a margin of preference in Bid evaluation, for which this clause shall apply.
- 30.2 African Union bidders shall provide all evidence necessary to prove that they meet the following criteria to be eligible for a margin of preference in the comparison of their bids with those of bidders who do not qualify for the preference. They should
 - (a) be registered within a Member State of the African Union;
 - (b) have majority ownership by nationals of Member States of the African Union;
 - (c) not subcontract more than ten (10) percent of the Contract Price including provisional sums to foreign contractors; and
 - (d) satisfy any other criteria specified for the purpose of eligibility for the margin of preference, as specified in the Bidding Data.
- 30.3 Joint ventures of African Union Member State firms may be eligible for the margin of preference provided that:
 - (a) individual partners satisfy the criteria of eligibility of ITB Clauses 30.2 (a) and (b);
 - (b) the joint venture is registered in the Country specified for performance of the works;
 - (c) the joint venture shall not subcontract more than ten (10) percent of the Contract Price, excluding provisional sums, to foreign firms; and
 - (d) satisfy any other criteria specified for the purpose of margin of preference eligibility, as specified in the Bidding Data.
- 30.4 The following procedure will be used to apply the margin of preference:
 - (a) Responsive bids will be classified into the following groups:
 - (i) Group A: bids offered by African Union Member State bidders and joint ventures meeting the respective criteria of ITB Clauses 30.2 and 30.3 above; and
 - (ii) Group B: all other bids.
 - (b) For the purpose of evaluation and comparison of bids only, an amount equal to the percentage stated in the Bidding Data of the evaluated Bid prices determined in accordance with

ITB Clause 29.2(a), (b), and (d), will be added to all bids classified in Group B.

F. Award of Contract

- **31. Award Criteria** 31.1 Subject to ITB Clause 32, the Employer will award the Contract to the Bidder whose Bid has been determined to be substantially responsive to the bidding documents and who has offered the lowest evaluated cost Bid price, provided that such Bidder has been determined to be (a) eligible in accordance with the provisions of ITB Clause 3, and (b) qualified in accordance with the provisions of ITB Clause 4.
- 32. Employer's Right to Accept any Bid and to Reject any or all Bids
 32.1 The Employer reserves the right to accept or reject any Bid, and to cancel the bidding process and reject all bids, at any time prior to the award of Contract, without thereby incurring any liability to the affected bidder or bidders or any obligation to inform the affected Bidder or bidders of the grounds for the Employer's action.
- 33. Notification of Award and Signing of Agreement
 33.1 The Bidder whose Bid has been accepted will be notified of the award by the Employer prior to expiration of the Bid validity period by e-mail, facsimile and confirmed by registered letter or courier service. This letter (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract called the "Letter of Acceptance") will state the sum that the Employer will pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution, completion, and maintenance of the Works by the Contract called the "Contract (hereinafter and in the Contract called the "Contract Price").
 - 33.2 The notification of award will constitute the formation of the Contract, subject to the Bidder furnishing the Performance Security in accordance with ITB Clause 34, and signing the Agreement in accordance with ITB Clause 33.3.
 - 33.3 The Agreement will incorporate all agreements between the Employer and the successful Bidder. It will be signed by the Employer and sent to the successful Bidder, within 14 days following the notification of award along with the Letter of Acceptance. Within 14 days of receipt, the successful Bidder will sign the Agreement and deliver it to the Employer.
 - 33.4 Upon the furnishing by the successful Bidder of the Performance Security, the Employer will promptly notify the other bidders that their bids have been unsuccessful.
- 34. Performance 34.1 Within 14 days after receipt of the Letter of Acceptance, the successful Bidder shall deliver to the Employer a Performance Security in the amount stipulated in the Contract Data in the form

of a Bank Guarantee, denominated in the type and proportions of currencies in the Letter of Acceptance and in accordance with the Conditions of Contract.

- 34.2 The Bank Guarantee shall be issued either (a) at the Bidder's option, by a bank located in a Member State of the African Union or a foreign bank through a correspondent bank located in the Country specified for the performance of the works, or (b) with the agreement of the Employer directly by a foreign bank acceptable to the Employer.
- 34.3 Failure of the successful Bidder to comply with the requirements of ITB Clause 34.1 shall constitute sufficient grounds for cancellation of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security.
- 35. Advance Payment and Security35.1 The Employer may provide an Advance Payment on the Contract Price as stipulated in the Conditions of Contract, subject to a maximum amount of 25%.
- 36. Adjudicator36.1 The Employer proposes the person named in the Bidding Data to be appointed as Adjudicator under the Contract, at a fee rate specified in the Bidding Data, plus reimbursable expenses. If the Bidder disagrees with this proposal, the Bidder should so state in the Bid. If, in the Letter of Acceptance, the Employer has not agreed on the appointment of the Adjudicator, the Adjudicator shall be appointed by the Appointing Authority designated in the Contract Data at the request of either party.
- 37. Corrupt or Fraudulent Practices
 37.1 The African Union requires that Officers of the AU, as well as Bidders/ Suppliers/Contractors, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of such contracts.² In pursuance of this policy the AU:
 - (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - (i) "corrupt practice"³ is the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;
 - (ii) "fraudulent practice"⁴ is any act or omission including a misrepresentation that knowingly or recklessly

² In this context, any action taken by a bidder, supplier, contractor, or a sub-contractor to influence the procurement process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper.

³ "another party" refers to an officer of the AU acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, "officer of the AU" includes staff and employees of other organisations taking or reviewing procurement decisions.

⁴ a "party" refers to any officer of the AU; the terms "benefit" and "obligation" relate to the procurement process or contract execution; and the "act or omission" is intended to influence the procurement process or contract execution.

misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;

- (iii) "collusive practice"⁵ is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;
- (iv) "coercive practice"⁶ is impairing or harming or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;
- (v) "obstructive practice" is deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing of evidence material to any investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede any investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation;
- (b) will reject a recommendation for award of contract if it determines that the bidder recommended for award has, directly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- (c) will declare a firm ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time, to be awarded an African Union financed contract if it at any time determines that the firm has, directly or through an agent, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices in competing for, or in executing, an African Union financed contract.
- 37.2 Furthermore, Bidders shall be aware of the provisions stated in Clause 23.2 and Clause 59.2 of the Conditions of Contract.

⁵ "parties" refers to any participants in the procurement process (including officers of the AU) attempting to establish bid prices at artificial, non competitive levels.

⁶ a "party" refers to any participant in the procurement process or contract execution.

Section III. Bidding Data

The following specific data for the works to be procured shall complement, supplement, or amend the provisions in the Instructions to Bidders (ITB). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the ITB.

Instructions to Bidders Clause Reference	
ITB Clause 1.1	Name of Employer: African Union Development Agency – NEPAD (AUDA-NEPAD)
ITB Clause 1.1	The Project Title/Name of Contract:_ Design and Build of a 100 kw Solar PV Generating System to drive climate smart technology (hydroponic/aquaponic/drip irrigation) application in Addare/Niger.
ITB Clause 1.1	The Procurement Number is: 2/AUDA/DPDC/ENV/RFB/W/2020.
ITB Clause 3.1	All Contractors based and registered in Niger are eligible.
ITB Clause 4.3	The information required from bidders in Sub-Clause 4.3 is modified as follows:a) In addition to the requirements stated, the Bidder shall also submit evidence of ISO 9001 & ISO 14001 certification and/or Quality Assurance plan where applicable;
ITB Clause 4.4	The requirements for joint ventures in Sub-Clause 4.4 are modified as follows: Joint Venture agreement between the Parties is allowed
ITB Clause 4.5	 The qualification criteria in Sub-Clause 4.5 are modified as follows: a) In addition to the requirements stated, the Bidder shall also submit Manufactures authorization for solar PV equipment. The Manufacturer's Authorisation form should be completed by the Manufacturer, as appropriate.
ITB Clause 4.5a	The minimum required annual volume of construction work for the successful Bidder in any of the last five years is US\$100,000.00. If Joint Venture one Member must meet 70% of the requirements and all members combined must meet the requirement.
ITB Clause 4.5c	 The essential equipment required for the Works is a) Scaffolding b) Welding Machine c) Truck (5ton) d) Borehole drilling machine
ITB Clause 4.5d	The key personnel required for the performance of the contract and their qualifications and experience are:

Item No.	Position/specialization	Relevant academic qualifications	Minimum years of relevant work experience
1	Project Manager	certified engineer in electrical to the level of a work manager (Masters Degree in Engineering,) in electrical engineering or equivalent with	at least 5 years of evidence proven experience in the field of (Renewable Energy, Hybrid Solar PV) and shall be professionally registered with a recognized engineering body.
2	Site Engineer	with a minimum of (Bachelors Degree Engineering) in electrical engineering or equivalent	with 5years of evidence proven experience in construction of PV of solar hybrid plant of at least 50kw capacity.
3	Site Foreman	with a minimum technical Diploma in water engineering or equivalent	at least 5years of evidence proven experience in borehole drilling services for clean water provision and reticulation.
4	Agriculture engineer	(Masters Degree in Engineering) in agriculture or equivalent	at least 5years of evidence proven experience in the field of agricultural production (hydroponic/aquaponic/dri p irrigation).
5	Structural Engineer	a minimum level of (Bachelors Degree Engineering) in civil engineering or equivalent	at least 5years of evidence proven experience in the construction of structure in context of agriculture (hydroponic/aquaponic/dri p irrigation) networking system.

ITB Clause 4.5e The required minimum amount of net liquid assets and/or credit facilities is US\$50,000.00.

ITB Clause 8.2
(and 18.1)Original signed Bids to be submitted Electronically through email
procurement@nepad.org

ITB Clause 9.1	The Employer's address, and contact information are:
	Attention of: Head of Procurement Division AUDA-NEPAD 230, 15th Road, P. O. Box 218 Midrand, 1685 Johannesburg, South Africa
	Email: <u>bathom@nepad.org</u> and copy <u>procurement@nepad.org</u>
	A Pre-Bid meeting <u>will</u> take place at the following date, time and place: Date: <u>May 19, 2020</u> Time: <u>14.00 hours (South African Time)</u> Place: <u>Online (dial in details will be shared with applicants at least a day before the meeting)</u>
	The purpose of the pre-bid meeting will be to clarify issues and to answer questions on any matter that may be raised at that stage.
	Minutes of the pre-bid meeting, including the text of the questions asked by Bidders, without identifying the source, and the responses given, together with any responses prepared after the meeting, will be transmitted promptly to all Bidders who have acquired the Bidding Documents.
	Questions in writing, to reach AUDA-NEPAD not later than 2 days before the pre-bid meeting or submission date.
	A site visit conducted by the Employer will not be organized.
ITB Clause 11.1	The Language of the Bid is English.
ITB Clause 12.1	Other documents to be submitted by the bidder are:a) Bid-Securing Declaration shall be submitted instead of a bid-security;
ITB Clause 13.4	The Contract not subject to price adjustment in accordance with Clause 47 of the Conditions of Contract.
ITB Clause 14.1	Bids shall be denominated in US Dollars.
ITB Clause 15.1	The period of Bid validity shall be 60 calendar days after the deadline for submission of bids.
ITB Clause 16.1	Bid Securing Declaration is required instead of a bid security, any bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive Bid-Securing Declaration shall be rejected by the Employer as non-responsive.
ITB Clause 17.1	Alternative proposals to the requirements of the bidding documents will be permitted.

ITB Clause 19.2(a) The address for the submission of bids is

The Chairperson Internal Procurement Committee (IPC) AUDA-NEPAD 230, 15th Road, P. O. Box 218 Midrand, 1685 Johannesburg, South Africa Email: procurement@nepad.org

Attention of: Head of Procurement Division

- ITB Clause 19.2(b) The Name and Procurement Number of the Contract is: Design and Build of a 100 kw Solar PV Generating System in Addare/Niger. REF: 2/AUDA/DPDC/ENV/RFB/W/2020.
- **ITB Clause 19.2(c)** The time and date for bid opening is *14.40 (South Africa Time)* on May 27, 2020. Opening will be conducted through an online platform and details will be shared with applicants.
- ITB Clause 20.1The deadline for submission of bids is 14.30 (South Africa Time) on
May 27, 2020
- **ITB Clause 30.1** African Union Bidders will not receive a margin of preference in Bid evaluation.

ITB Clause 36.1 The Adjudicator proposed by the Employer is any International Federation of Consulting Engineers (FIDIC) Adjudicator who is on the President's List of Approved Dispute Adjudicators.

The fee rate for this proposed Adjudicator shall be TBC

The biographical data of the proposed Adjudicator is as follows: TBC

In the event of disagreement between the Employer and the Contractor on an Adjudicator, the Adjudicator will be appointed by Niger Institution of Engineers.

Section IV. Forms of Bid, Qualification Information, Manufactures Authorization Form, Form of Bid-Securing Declaration, Letter of Acceptance and Agreement

Contractor's Bid

Notes on Form of Contractor's Bid

The Bidder shall fill in and submit this Bid form with the Bid. Additional details on the price should be inserted if the Bid is in various currencies. If the Bidder objects to the Adjudicator proposed by the Employer in the bidding documents, he should so state in his Bid, and present an alternative candidate, together with the candidate's fee rates and biographical data, in accordance with Clause 36 of the Instructions to Bidders.

{letterhead paper of the bidder}

{date}

25

To: {name and address of Employer}

We offer to execute the *{name and procurement number of Contract}* in accordance with the Conditions of Contract accompanying this Bid for the Contract Price of *{amount in numbers}, {amount in words} {name of currency}.*

The Contract shall be paid in the following currencies:

Currency	Percentage payable in	Rate of exchange: one foreign	Inputs for which foreign currency is
	currency	equals [<i>rate</i>] US Dollar	required
(a)			
(b)			
(c)			

The advance payment required is:

Amount	Currency
(a)	
(b)	
(c)	

We accept the appointment of {name proposed in Bidding Data} as the Adjudicator.

[or]

We do not accept the appointment of *{name proposed in Bidding Data}]* as the Adjudicator, and propose instead that *{name}* be appointed as Adjudicator, whose fee rates and biographical data are attached.

This Bid and your written acceptance of it shall constitute a binding Contract between us. We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest or any Bid you receive. Commissions or gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid by us to agents relating to this Bid, and to contract execution if we are awarded the contract, are listed below:

Name and address of agent	Amount and Currency	Purpose of Commission or gratuity
(if none, state "none")."		

We hereby confirm that this Bid complies with the Bid Validity and Bid Security required by the bidding documents and specified in the Bidding Data.

Authorised Signature:	
Name and Title of Signatory: _	
Name of Bidder:	
Address:	

Qualification Information

Notes on Form of Qualification Information

The information to be filled in by bidders in the following pages will be used for purposes of post-qualification or for verification of prequalification as provided for in Clause 4 of the Instructions to Bidders. This information will not be incorporated in the Contract. Attach additional pages as necessary. Pertinent sections of attached documents should be translated into the language of the Bid. If used for prequalification verification, the Bidder should fill in updated information only.

1. Individual Bidders or Individual Members of Joint Ventures		1.1	Constitution or legal status of Bidder: <i>{attach copy}</i> Place of registration: <i>{insert}</i>]
			Principal place of business: {insert}
			Power of attorney of signatory of Bid: {attach}
		1.2	Total annual volume of construction work performed in five years: {insert figure in US Dollars or an equivalent in a freely convertible foreign currency}
		1.3	Work performed as prime Contractor on works of a similar nature and volume over the last five years. The values should be indicated in the same currency used for Item 1.2 above. Also list details of work under way or committed, including expected completion date.

Project name and country	Name of client and contact person	Type of work performed and year of completion	Value of contract
(a)			
(b)			
(c)			

1.4 Major items of Contractor's Equipment proposed for carrying out the Works. List all information requested below. Refer also to Clause 4.3(d) of the Instructions to Bidders.

Item of equipment	Description, make, and age (years)	Condition (new, good, poor) and number available	Owned, leased (from whom?), or to be purchased (from whom?)
(a)	und uge (years)		be purchased (from whom?)
(b)			
(c)			

1.5 Qualifications and experience of key personnel proposed for administration and execution of the Contract. Attach biographical data. Refer also to Clause 4.3(e) of the Instructions to Bidders and Clause 9.1 of the Conditions of Contract.

Position	Name	Years of experience (general)	Years of experience in proposed position
(a)			
(b)			
(c)			

1.6 Proposed subcontracts and firms involved. Refer to Clause 7 of Conditions of Contract.

Sections of the Works	Value of subcontract	Subcontractor (name and address)	Experience in similar work
(a)			
(b)			
(c)			

- 1.7 Financial reports for the last five years: balance sheets, profit and loss statements, auditors' reports, etc. List below and attach copies.
- 1.8 Evidence of access to financial resources to meet the qualification requirements: cash in hand, lines of credit, etc. List below and attach copies of support documents.
- 1.9 Name, address, and telephone, and facsimile numbers of banks that may provide references if contacted by the Employer.
- 1.10 Information on current litigation in which the Bidder is involved.

Other party(ies)	Cause of dispute	Amount involved
(a)		
(b)		
(c)		

- 1.11 Statement of compliance with the requirements of Clause 3.2 of the Instructions to Bidders.
- 1.12 Proposed Program (work method and schedule). Descriptions, drawings, and charts, as necessary, to comply with the requirements of the bidding documents.

2.	Joint Ventures	2.1	The information listed in 1.1 - 1.11 above shall be provided for each partner of the joint venture.
		2.2	The information in 1.12 above shall be provided for the joint venture.
		2.3	Attach the power of attorney of the signatory(ies) of the Bid authorising signature of the Bid on behalf of the joint venture.
		2.4	Attach the Agreement among all partners of the joint venture (and which is legally binding on all partners), which shows that:
			 (a) all partners shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms;
			(b) one of the partners will be nominated as being in charge, authorised to incur liabilities, and receive instructions for and on behalf of any and all partners of the joint venture; and
			(c) the execution of the entire Contract, including payment, shall be done exclusively with the partner in charge.
3.	Additional Requirements	3.1	Bidders should provide any additional information required in the Bidding Data or to fulfil the requirements of Clause 4.1 and

the Bidding Data or to fulfil the requirements of Clause 4.1 and Clause 30 of the Instructions to Bidders, if applicable.

Manufacturer's Authorisation Form

[See Clause 4.5 of the Instructions to Bidders.]

To: African Union Development Agency - NEPAD

WHEREAS {*name of the Manufacturer*} who are established and reputable manufacturers of {*name and/or description of the goods*} having factories at {*address of factory*}.

do hereby authorise *{name and address of Agent}* to submit a bid, and subsequently negotiate and sign the Contract with you against Procurement No. *{reference of the Invitation to Bid}* for the above goods manufactured by us.

We hereby extend our full guarantee and warranty as per Clause 15 of the General Conditions of Contract for the goods offered for supply by the above firm against this Invitation for Bids.

{signature for and on behalf of Manufacturer}

{Name and title of authorised signatory}

[Note: This letter of authority should be on the letterhead of the Manufacturer and should be signed by a person competent and having the power of attorney to bind the Manufacturer. It should be included by the Bidder in its bid.]

Form of Bid-Securing Declaration

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year)] Bid No.: [insert number of bidding process] Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To: African Union Development Agency - AUDA

We, the undersigned, declare that:

We understand that, according to your conditions, bids must be supported by a Bid-Securing Declaration.

We accept that we will automatically be suspended from being eligible for bidding in any contract with the entity that invited Bids for the period of time of two (2) years starting date of bid validity expiration, if we are in breach of our obligation(s) under the bid conditions, because we:

- (a) have withdrawn our Bid during the period of bid validity specified in the Letter of Bid; or
- (b) having been notified of the acceptance of our Bid by the Employer during the period of bid validity, (i) fail or refuse to execute the Contract, if required, or (ii) fail or refuse to furnish the Performance Security, in accordance with the ITB.

We understand this Bid-Securing Declaration shall expire if we are not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of your notification to us of the name of the successful Bidder; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the expiration of our Bid.

Name of the Bidder*[insert complete name ofperson signing the Bid]

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder** [insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Bid]

Title of the person signing the Bid [insert complete title of the person signing the Bid]

Signature of the person named above[insert signature of personwhose name and capacity are shown above]

Date signed _[insert date of signing] day of [insert month], [insert year]

*: In the case of the Bid submitted by joint venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder

**: Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder to be attached with the Bid [Note: In case of a Joint Venture, the Bid-Securing Declaration must be in the name of all members to the Joint Venture that submits the bid.]

Letter of Acceptance

[letterhead paper of the Employer]

Notes on Standard Form of Letter of Acceptance

The Letter of Acceptance will be the basis for formation of the Contract as described in Clauses 33 and 34 of the Instructions to Bidders. This Standard Form of Letter of Acceptance should be filled in and sent to the successful Bidder only after evaluation of bids has been completed and Tender Board approval to the evaluation report and award of contract is granted.

[date]

To: [name and address of the Contractor]

This is to notify you that your Bid dated [date] for execution of the [name of the Contract and Procurement Number, as given in the Contract Data] for the Contract Price of [amount in numbers and words] [name of currency], as corrected and modified in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders is hereby accepted.

- (a) We accept that *[name proposed by bidder]* be appointed as the Adjudicator.⁷
- or
- (b) We do not accept that [name proposed by bidder] be appointed as adjudicator, and by sending a copy of this letter of acceptance to [insert the name of the Appointing Authority], we are hereby requesting [name], the Appointing Authority, to appoint the Adjudicator in accordance with Clause 36.1 of the Instructions to Bidders.⁸

You are requested to submit the Performance Security of [amount in numbers and in words] US Dollars [or other agreed currency] and attend at [address] on [date] at [time] hours for signature of the Contract.

Authorised Signature:

Name and Title of Signatory:

Name of Employer:

⁷ To be used only if the Contractor disagrees in the Bid with the Adjudicator proposed by the Employer in the Instructions to Bidders, and has accordingly offered another candidate. If the Employer does not accept the counterproposal, the sentence should so state, and be followed by an additional sentence: "We therefore shall request the *[name of Appointing Authority as named in the Contract Data]* to appoint the Adjudicator in accordance with Clause 36 of the Instructions to Bidders."

⁸ To be used only if the Contractor disagrees in the Bid with the Adjudicator proposed by the Employer in the Instructions to Bidders, and has accordingly offered another candidate. If the Employer does not accept the counterproposal, the sentence should so state, and be followed by an additional sentence: "We therefore shall request the *[name of Appointing Authority as named in the Contract Data]* to appoint the Adjudicator in accordance with Clause 36 of the Instructions to Bidders."

Attachment: Agreement

Agreement

This Agreement, made the [day] day of [month], [year] between [name and address of Employer] (hereinafter called "the Employer") and [name and address of Contractor] (hereinafter called "the Contractor") of the other part.

Whereas the Employer is desirous that the Contractor execute [name and Procurement Number of Contract] (hereinafter called "the Works") and the Employer has accepted the Bid by the Contractor for the execution and completion of such Works and the remedying of any defects therein for the sum of [Contract Price in numbers and words], (hereinafter called "the Contract Price").

Now this Agreement witnesseth as follows:

- 1. In this Agreement, words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Conditions of Contract hereinafter referred to, and they shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement.
- 2. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this agreement, in the following order of priority, viz:
 - (a) Agreement;
 - (b) Contract Data;
 - (c) Conditions of Contract;
 - (d) Specifications;
 - (e) Drawings;
 - (f) Contractor's Bid, including the Priced Bill of Quantities⁹;
 - (g) Letter of Acceptance; and
 - (h) any other document listed in the Contract Data as forming part of the Contract.
- 3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Employer to the Contractor as hereinafter mentioned, the Contractor hereby covenants with the Employer to execute and complete the Works and remedy any defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.
- 4. The Employer hereby covenants to pay the Contractor in consideration of the execution and completion of the Works and the remedying of defects wherein the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

In Witness whereof the parties thereto have caused this Agreement to be executed the day and year first before written.

The Common Seal of
was hereunto affixed in the presence of:
Signed, Sealed, and Delivered by the said
in the presence of:
Name, Title and Signature of Employer
Name and Signature of Contractor
-

⁹ In lump sum contracts, delete "Bill of Quantities" and replace with "Activity Schedule".

Section V. Conditions of Contract

Table of Clauses

A.	General		
	1.	Definitions	37
	2.	Interpretation	
	3.	Language and Law	
	4.	Project Manager's Decisions	40
	5.	Delegation	40
	6.	Communications	40
	7.	Subcontracting	40
	8.	Other Contractors	40
	9.	Personnel	
	10.	Employer's and Contractor's Risks	41
	11.	Employer's Risks	41
	12.	Contractor's Risks	41
	13.	Insurance	41
	14.	Site Investigation Reports	
	15.	Queries about the Contract Data	42
	16.	Contractor to Construct the Works	
	17.	The Works to Be Completed by the Intended Completion Date	42
	18.	Approval by the Project Manager	43
	19.	Safety	43
	20.	Discoveries	43
	21.	Possession of the Site	43
	22.	Access to the Site	43
	23.	Instructions Inspection and Audits	43
	24.	Disputes	43
	25.	Procedure for Disputes	44
	26.	Replacement of Adjudicator	44
_	-	_	
B.		ntrol	
	27.	Program	
	28.	Extension of the Intended Completion Date	
	29.	Acceleration	
	30.	Delays Ordered by the Project Manager	
	31.	Management Meetings	
	32.	Early Warning	46
C	Quality	Control	16
C.	33.	Identifying Defects	
	33. 34.	Tests	
	34. 35.	Correction of Defects	
		Uncorrected Defects	
	36.	Uncorrected Defects	40
D.	Cost Co	1trol	47
~.	37.	Bill of Quantities	
	38.	Changes in the Quantities	
	39.	Variations	
	•		

40.	Payments for Variations	47
41.	Cash Flow Forecasts	
42.	Payment Certificates	
43.	Payments	49
44.	Compensation Events	49
45.	Taxes and Duties	51
46.	Currencies	51
47.	Price Adjustment	51
48.	Retention	51
49.	Liquidated Damages	
50.	Bonus	52
51.	Advance Payment	52
52.	Securities	52
53.	Dayworks	53
54.	Cost of Repairs	53
Finishing	g the Contract	53
55.		
56.	1	
57.		
58.	Operating and Maintenance Manuals	53
59.		
60.	Payment upon Termination	55
61.	Property	56
62.	Release from Performance	56
	41. 42. 43. 44. 45. 46. 47. 48. 49. 50. 51. 52. 53. 54. Finishin 55. 56. 57. 58. 59. 60. 61.	41. Cash Flow Forecasts 42. Payment Certificates 43. Payments 44. Compensation Events 45. Taxes and Duties 46. Currencies 47. Price Adjustment 48. Retention 49. Liquidated Damages 50. Bonus 51. Advance Payment 52. Securities 53. Dayworks 54. Cost of Repairs 55. Completion 56. Taking Over 57. Final Account 58. Operating and Maintenance Manuals 59. Termination 60. Payment upon Termination

Conditions of Contract

A. General

1. Definitions 1.1 Boldface type is used to identify defined terms.

The **Adjudicator** is the person appointed jointly by the Employer and the Contractor to resolve disputes in the first instance, as provided for in Clauses 24 and 25 hereunder.

Bill of Quantities means the priced and completed Bill of Quantities forming part of the Bid for an Admeasurement (Unit Price) Contract.

Activity Schedule means the priced and completed Activity Schedule forming part of the Bid for a Lump Sum Contract

Compensation Events are those defined in Clause 44.

The **Completion Date** is the date of completion of the Works as certified by the Project Manager, in accordance with Clause 55.1.

The **Contract** is the Contract between the Employer and the Contractor to execute, complete, and maintain the Works. It consists of the documents listed in Clause 2.3.

The **Contractor** is a person or corporate body whose Bid to carry out the Works has been accepted by the Employer.

The **Contractor's Bid** is the completed bidding document submitted by the Contractor to the Employer.

The **Contract Price** is the price stated in the Letter of Acceptance and thereafter as adjusted in accordance with the provisions of the Contract.

The **Country specified for the performance of the Works** is the Country specified in the Contract Data.

Days are calendar days; months are calendar months.

Dayworks are varied work inputs subject to payment on a time basis for the Contractor's employees and Equipment, in addition to payments for associated Materials and Plant.

A **Defect** is any part of the Works not completed in accordance with the Contract.

The **Defects Liability Certificate** is the certificate issued by Project Manager upon correction of defects by the Contractor.

37

The **Defects Liability Period** is the period named in the Contract Data and calculated from the Completion Date.

Drawings include calculations and other information provided or approved by the Project Manager for the execution of the Contract.

The **Employer** is the party who employs the Contractor to carry out the Works.

Equipment is the Contractor's machinery and vehicles brought temporarily to the Site to construct the Works.

The **Initial Contract Price** is the Contract Price listed in the Employer's Letter of Acceptance.

The **Intended Completion Date** is the date on which it is intended that the Contractor shall complete the Works. The Intended Completion Date is specified in the Contract Data. The Intended Completion Date may be revised only by the Project Manager, following approval of the Employer, by issuing an approved extension of time or an acceleration order.

Materials are all supplies, including consumables, used by the Contractor for incorporation in the Works.

Plant is any integral part of the Works that shall have a mechanical, electrical, chemical, or biological function.

The **Project Manager** is the person named in the Contract Data (or any other competent person appointed by the Employer and notified to the Contractor, to act in replacement of the Project Manager) who is responsible for supervising the execution of the Works and administering the day-to-day operation of the Contract.

The **Site** is the area defined as such in the Contract Data.

Site Investigation Reports are those that were included in the bidding documents and are factual and interpretative reports about the surface and subsurface conditions at the Site.

Specification means the Specification of the Works included in the Contract and any modification or addition made or approved by the Project Manager.

The **Start Date** is given in the Contract Data. It is the latest date when the Contractor shall commence execution of the Works. It does not necessarily coincide with any of the Site Possession Dates. A **Subcontractor** is a person or corporate body who has a Contract with the Contractor to carry out a part of the work in the Contract, which includes work on the Site.

Temporary Works are works designed, constructed, installed, and removed by the Contractor that are needed for construction or installation of the Works.

A **Variation** is an instruction given by the Project Manager which varies the Works.

The **Works** are what the Contract requires the Contractor to construct, install, and hand over to the Employer, as defined in the Contract Data.

- 2. Interpretation 2.1 In interpreting these Conditions of Contract, singular also means plural, male also means female, and the other way around. Headings have no significance. Words have their normal meaning under the language of the Contract unless specifically defined. The Project Manager will provide instructions clarifying queries about these Conditions of Contract.
 - 2.2 If sectional completion is specified in the Contract Data, references in the Conditions of Contract to the Works, the Completion Date, and the Intended Completion Date apply to any Section of the Works (other than references to the Completion Date and Intended Completion Date for the whole of the Works).
 - 2.3 The documents forming the Contract shall be interpreted in the following order of priority:
 - (1) Agreement;
 - (2) Contract Data;
 - (3) Conditions of Contract;
 - (4) Technical Specifications;
 - (5) Drawings;
 - (6) Contractor's Bid, including the Priced Bill of Quantities 10 ;
 - (7) Letter of Acceptance; and
 - (8) any other document listed in the Contract Data as forming part of the Contract.
- 3. Language and Law
 3.1 The language of the Contract is English and the law governing the Contract is International Law unless otherwise stated in the Contract Data.

39

¹⁰ In lump sum contracts, delete "Bill of Quantities" and replace with "Activity Schedule".

40

- 4. Project
Manager's
Decisions4.1Except where otherwise specifically stated, the Project Manager
will decide contractual matters between the Employer and the
Contractor in the role representing the Employer.
 - 4.2 The Project Manager shall obtain specific approval from the Employer before carrying out any of his duties under the Contract which in the Project Manager's opinion will cause the total amount finally due under the Contract to exceed the Contract Price or will give entitlement to an extension of time. This requirement shall be waived in an emergency affecting safety of personnel or the Works or adjacent property.
- **5. Delegation** 5.1 The Project Manager may delegate any of his duties and responsibilities to other people, except to the Adjudicator, after notifying the Contractor, and may cancel any delegation after notifying the Contractor.
- **6.Communications** 6.1 Communications between parties that are referred to in the Conditions shall be effective only when in writing. A notice shall be effective only when it is delivered.
- **7. Subcontracting** 7.1 The Contractor may subcontract with the approval of the Project Manager, but may not assign the Contract without the approval of the Employer in writing. Subcontracting shall not alter the Contractor's obligations.
- 8. Other
 8.1 The Contractor shall co-operate and share the Site with other contractors
 8.1 The Contractor shall co-operate and share the Site with other contractors, public authorities, utilities, and the Employer between the dates given in the Schedule of Other Contractors, as referred to in the Contract Data. The Contractor shall also provide facilities and services for them as described in the Schedule. The Employer may modify the Schedule of Other Contractors, and shall notify the Contractor of any such modification.
- **9. Personnel** 9.1 The Contractor shall employ the key personnel named in the Schedule of Key Personnel, as referred to in the Contract Data, to carry out the functions stated in the Schedule or other personnel approved by the Project Manager. The Project Manager will approve any proposed replacement of key personnel only if their relevant qualifications and abilities are substantially equal to or better than those of the personnel listed in the Schedule.
 - 9.2 If the Project Manager asks the Contractor to remove a person who is a member of the Contractor's staff or work force, stating valid reasons, the Contractor shall ensure that the person leaves the Site within seven days and has no further connection with the work in the Contract.

T I

10. Employer's and Contractor's Risks	10.1	Emp	Employer carries the risks which this Contract states are ployer's risks, and the Contractor carries the risks which this tract states are Contractor's risks.
11. Employer's Risks	11.1		n the Start Date until the Defects Correction Certificate has issued, the following are Employer's risks:
		(a)	The risk of personal injury, death, or loss of or damage to property (excluding the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment), which are due to:
			 use or occupation of the Site by the Works or for the purpose of the Works, which is the unavoidable result of the Works; or
			 (ii) negligence, breach of statutory duty, or interference with any legal right by the Employer or by any person employed by or contracted to him except the Contractor.
		(b)	The risk of damage to the Works, Plant, Materials, and Equipment to the extent that it is due to a fault of the Employer or in the Employer's design, or due to war or radioactive contamination directly affecting the Country specified for performance of the Works.
	11.2	has b	n the Completion Date until the Defects Correction Certificate been issued, the risk of loss of or damage to the Works, Plant, Materials is an Employer's risk except loss or damage due to
		(a)	a Defect which existed on the Completion Date,
		(b)	an event occurring before the Completion Date, which was not itself an Employer's risk, or
		(c)	the activities of the Contractor on the Site after the Completion Date.
12. Contractor's Risks	12.1	been dama Plan	n the Starting Date until the Defects Correction Certificate has a issued, the risks of personal injury, death, and loss of or age to property (including, without limitation, the Works, t, Materials, and Equipment) which are not Employer's risks Contractor's risks.
13. Insurance	13.1	and the of the Cont	Contractor shall provide, in the joint names of the Employer the Contractor, insurance cover from the Start Date to the end he Defects Liability Period, in the amounts stated in the tract Data for the following events which are due to the tractor's risks:

14. Site

- (a) loss of or damage to the Works, Plant, and Materials;
- (b) loss of or damage to Equipment;
- loss of or damage to property (except the Works, Plant, (c) Materials, and Equipment) in connection with the Contract;
- (d) personal injury or death, and
- (e) any other insurance as specified in the Contract Data.
- 13.2 Policies and certificates for insurance shall be delivered by the Contractor to the Project Manager for the Project Manager's approval before the Start Date. All such insurance shall provide for compensation to be payable in the types and proportions of currencies required to rectify the loss or damage incurred.
- 13.3 If the Contractor does not provide any of the policies and certificates required, the Employer may effect the insurance which the Contractor should have provided and recover the premiums the Employer has paid from payments otherwise due to the Contractor or, if no payment is due, the payment of the premiums shall be a debt due to the Employer.
- 13.4 Alterations to the terms of an insurance shall not be made without the approval of the Project Manager.
- 13.5 Both parties shall comply with any conditions of the insurance policies.
- 14.1 The Contractor, in preparing the Bid, shall rely on any Site Investigation Reports referred to in the Contract Data, Investigation supplemented by any information available to the Bidder. **Reports**
- **15.** Queries about 15.1 The Project Manager will clarify queries on the Contract Data. the Contract Data
- 16. Contractor to 16.1 The Contractor shall construct and install the Works in accordance **Construct the** with the Specifications and Drawings. Works
- 17. The Works to 17.1 The Contractor may commence execution of the Works on the Start Date and shall carry out the Works in accordance with the **Be Completed** by the Program submitted by the Contractor, as updated with the approval of the Project Manager, and complete them by the Intended Intended Completion Date. Completion Date

18. Approval b the Project Manager	y 18.1	The Contractor shall submit Specifications and Drawings showing proposed Temporary Works to the Project Manager, who is to approve them if they comply with the Specifications and Drawings.
	18.2	The Contractor shall be responsible for design of Temporary Works.
	18.3	The Project Manager's approval shall not alter the Contractor's responsibility for design of Temporary Works.
	18.4	The Contractor shall obtain approval of third parties to the design of Temporary Works, where required.
	18.5	All Drawings prepared by the Contractor for the execution of the temporary or permanent Works, are subject to prior approval by the Project Manager before this use.
19. Safety	19.1	The Contractor shall be responsible for the safety of all activities on the Site.
20. Discoveries	20.1	Anything of historical or other interest or of significant value unexpectedly discovered on the Site shall be the property of the Employer. The Contractor shall notify the Project Manager of such discoveries and carry out the Project Manager's instructions for dealing with them.
21. Possession the Site	of 21.1	The Employer shall give possession of all parts of the Site to the Contractor. If possession of a part is not given by the date stated in the Contract Data, the Employer will be deemed to have delayed the start of the relevant activities, and this will be a Compensation Event.
22. Access to th Site	ne 22.1	The Contractor shall allow the Project Manager and any person authorised by the Project Manager access to the Site and to any place where work in connection with the Contract is being carried out or is intended to be carried out.
23. Instruction Inspection a Audits		The Contractor shall carry out all instructions of the Project Manager providing they comply with the applicable laws of the Country specified for performance of the Works.
	23.2	The Contractor shall permit the Commission of the African Union to inspect the Contractor's accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Commission, if so required by the Commission.
24. Disputes	24.1	If the Contractor believes that a decision taken by the Project Manager was either outside the authority given to the Project Manager by the Contract or that the decision was wrongly taken,

the issue shall be referred to the Commission of the African Union for review. If an agreed resolution is not achieved within 14 days of the complaint by the Contractor, the issue shall be referred to the Adjudicator for decision.

25. Procedure for Disputes25.1 The Adjudicator shall give a decision in writing within 28 days of receipt of a notification of a dispute, providing he has been timely provided with all the relevant information.

- 25.2 The Adjudicator shall be paid at the rate specified in the Bidding Data and Contract Data, together with reimbursable expenses of the types specified in the Contract Data, and the cost shall be divided equally between the Employer and the Contractor, whatever decision is reached by the Adjudicator. Either party may refer a decision of the Adjudicator to an Arbitrator within 28 days of the Adjudicator's written decision. If neither party refers the dispute to arbitration within the above 28 days, the Adjudicator's decision will be final and binding.
- 25.3 The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with the arbitration procedure published by the institution named and in the place shown in the Contract Data.
- 26. Replacement of Adjudicator26.1 Should the Adjudicator resign or die, or should the Employer and the Contractor agree that the Adjudicator is not functioning in accordance with the provisions of the Contract, a new Adjudicator will be jointly appointed by the Employer and the Contractor. In case of disagreement between the Employer and the Contractor, within 30 days, the Adjudicator shall be designated by the Appointing Authority designated in the Contract Data at the request of either party, within 14 days of receipt of such request.

B. Time Control

- 27. Program 27.1 Within the time stated in the Contract Data, the Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager for approval a Program showing the general methods, arrangements, order, and timing for all the activities in the Works.
 - 27.2 An update of the Program shall be a program showing the actual progress achieved on each activity and the effect of the progress achieved on the timing of the remaining work, including any changes to the sequence of the activities.
 - 27.3 The Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager for approval an updated Program at intervals no longer than the period stated in the Contract Data. If the Contractor does not submit an updated Program within this period, the Project Manager may withhold the amount stated in the Contract Data from the next payment certificate and continue to withhold this amount until the next

payment after the date on which the overdue Program has been submitted.

- 27.4 The Project Manager's approval of the Program shall not alter the Contractor's obligations. The Contractor may revise the Program and submit it to the Project Manager again at any time. A revised Program shall show the effect of Variations and Compensation Events.
- 28. Extension of the Intended Completion Date
 28.1 The Project Manager shall extend the Intended Completion Date if a Compensation Event occurs or a Variation is issued which makes it impossible for Completion to be achieved by the Intended Completion Date without the Contractor taking steps to accelerate the remaining work, which would cause the Contractor to incur additional cost. Approval of any such extension of time is subject to the provisions of Clause 4.2.
 - 28.2 The Project Manager shall decide whether and by how much to extend the Intended Completion Date within 21 days of the Contractor asking the Project Manager for a decision upon the effect of a Compensation Event or Variation and submitting full supporting information. If the Contractor has failed to give early warning of a delay or has failed to co-operate in dealing with a delay, the delay by this failure shall not be considered in assessing the new Intended Completion Date.
- **29. Acceleration** 29.1 When the Employer wants the Contractor to finish before the Intended Completion Date, the Project Manager will obtain priced proposals for achieving the necessary acceleration from the Contractor. If the Employer accepts these proposals, the Intended Completion Date will be adjusted accordingly and confirmed by both the Employer and the Contractor.
 - 29.2 If the Contractor's priced proposals for acceleration are accepted by the Employer, they are incorporated in the Contract Price and treated as a Variation.
- **30. Delays**
Ordered by the30.1The Project Manager may instruct the Contractor to delay the start
or progress of any activity within the Works.

Project Manager

- 31. Management Meetings31.1 Either the Project Manager or the Contractor may require the other to attend a management meeting. The business of a management meeting shall be to review the plans for remaining work and to deal with matters raised in accordance with the early warning procedure.
 - 31.2 The Project Manager shall record the business of management meetings and provide copies of the record to those attending the

meeting and to the Employer. The responsibility of the parties for actions to be taken shall be decided by the Project Manager either at the management meeting or after the management meeting and stated in writing to all who attended the meeting.

- **32. Early Warning** 32.1 The Contractor shall warn the Project Manager at the earliest opportunity of specific likely future events or circumstances that may adversely affect the quality of the work, increase the Contract Price, or delay the execution of the Works. The Project Manager may require the Contractor to provide an estimate of the expected effect of the future event or circumstance on the Contract Price and Completion Date. The estimate shall be provided by the Contractor as soon as reasonably possible.
 - 32.2 The Contractor shall co-operate with the Project Manager in making and considering proposals for how the effect of such an event or circumstance can be avoided or reduced by anyone involved in the work and in carrying out any resulting instruction of the Project Manager.

C. Quality Control

- 33. Identifying Defects
 33.1 The Project Manager shall check the Contractor's work and notify the Contractor of any Defects that are found. Such checking shall not affect the Contractor's responsibilities. The Project Manager may instruct the Contractor to search for a Defect and to uncover and test any work that the Project Manager considers may have a Defect.
- **34. Tests** 34.1 If the Project Manager instructs the Contractor to carry out a test not specified in the Specification to check whether any work has a Defect and the test shows that it does, the Contractor shall pay for the test and any samples. If there is no Defect, the test shall be a Compensation Event.
- 35. Correction of Defects35.1 The Project Manager shall give notice to the Contractor of any Defects before the end of the Defects Liability Period, which begins at Completion, and is defined in the Contract Data. The Defects Liability Period shall be extended for as long as Defects remain to be corrected.
 - 35.2 Every time notice of a Defect is given, the Contractor shall correct the notified Defect within the length of time specified by the Project Manager's notice.
- 36. Uncorrected Defects36.1 If the Contractor has not corrected a Defect within the time specified in the Project Manager's notice, the Project Manager will assess the cost of having the Defect corrected, and the Contractor will pay this amount.

37. Bill of Quantities ¹¹	37.1	The Bill of Quantities shall contain items for the construction, installation, testing, and commissioning work to be done by the Contractor.
	37.2	The Bill of Quantities is used to calculate the Contract Price. The Contractor is paid for the quantity of the work done at the rate in the Bill of Quantities for each item.
38. Changes in the Quantities ¹²	38.1	If the final quantity of the work done exceeds or falls short of the quantity set out in the Bill of Quantities for the particular item by more than 25 percent, provided the change exceeds 1 percent of the Initial Contract Price, the Project Manager shall adjust the rate or price to allow for the change subject to the provisions of Clause 4.2.
	38.2	The Project Manager shall not adjust rates from changes in quantities if thereby the Initial Contract Price is exceeded by more than 10 percent, except with the prior written approval of the Employer.
	38.3	If requested by the Project Manager, the Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with a detailed cost breakdown of any rate in the Bill of Quantities.
39. Variations	39.1	All Variations shall be included in updated Programs ¹³ produced by the Contractor.
40. Payments for Variations	40.1	The Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with a quotation for carrying out the Variation when requested to do so by the Project Manager. The Project Manager shall assess the quotation, which shall be given within seven days of the request or within any longer period stated by the Project Manager and before the Variation is ordered.

¹¹ In lump sum contracts, delete "Bill of Quantities" and replace with "Activity Schedule," and replace Clauses 37.1 and 37.2, as follows:

^{37.1} The Contractor shall provide updated Activity Schedules within 14 days of being instructed to by the Project Manager. The activities on the Activity Schedule shall be coordinated with the activities on the Program.

^{37.2} The Contractor shall show delivery of Materials to the Site separately on the Activity Schedule if payment for Materials on Site shall be made separately.

¹² In lump sum contracts, delete "Bill of Quantities" and replace with "Activity Schedule," and replace entire Clause 38 with new Clause 38.1, as follows:

^{38.1} The Activity Schedule shall be amended by the Contractor to accommodate changes of Program or method of working made at the Contractor's own discretion. Prices in the Activity Schedule shall not be altered when the Contractor makes such changes to the Activity Schedule.

¹³ In lump sum contracts, add "and Activity Schedules" after "Programs".

- 40.2 If the work in the Variation corresponds with an item description in the Bill of Quantities and if, in the opinion of the Project Manager, the quantity of work above the limit stated in Clause 38.1 or the timing of its execution do not cause the cost per unit of quantity to change, the rate in the Bill of Quantities shall be used to calculate the value of the Variation. If the cost per unit of quantity changes, or if the nature or timing of the work in the Variation does not correspond with items in the Bill of Quantities, the quotation by the Contractor shall be in the form of new rates for the relevant items of work.¹⁴
- 40.3 If the Contractor's quotation is unreasonable, the Project Manager may order the Variation and recommend to the Employer a change to the Contract Price, which shall be based on the Project Manager's own forecast of the effects of the Variation on the Contractor's costs.
- 40.4 If the Project Manager decides that the urgency of varying the work would prevent a quotation being given and considered without delaying the work, no quotation shall be given and the Variation shall be treated as a Compensation Event.
- 40.5 The Contractor shall not be entitled to additional payment for costs that could have been avoided by giving early warning.
- 41. Cash Flow Forecasts
 41.1 When the Program¹⁵ is updated, the Contractor shall provide the Project Manager with an updated cash flow forecast. The cash flow forecast shall include different currencies, as defined in the Contract, converted as necessary using the Contract exchange rates.
- **42. Payment Certificates** 42.1 The Contractor shall submit to the Project Manager monthly statements of the estimated value of the work executed less the cumulative amount certified previously.
 - 42.2 The Project Manager shall check the Contractor's monthly statement and certify the amount to be paid to the Contractor.
 - 42.3 The value of work executed shall be determined by the Project Manager.
 - 42.4 The value of work executed shall comprise the value of the quantities of the items in the Bill of Quantities completed.¹⁶
 - 42.5 The value of work executed shall include the valuation of Variations and Compensation Events.

48

¹⁴ In lump sum contracts, delete this paragraph.

¹⁵ In lump sum contracts, add "or Activity Schedule" after "Program".

¹⁶ In lump sum contracts, replace this paragraph with the following: "The value of work executed shall comprise the value of completed activities in the Activity Schedule."

- 42.6 The Project Manager may exclude any item certified in a previous certificate or reduce the proportion of any item previously certified in any certificate in the light of later information.
- **43. Payments** 43.1 Payments shall be adjusted for deductions for advance payments and retention. The Employer shall pay the Contractor the amounts certified by the Project Manager within 45 days of the date of each certificate. If the Employer makes a late payment, the Contractor shall be entitled to claim interest on the late payment. Interest shall be calculated from the date by which the payment should have been made up to the date when the late payment is made calculated using the following formula:

Value of the Payment Certificate x 15% x No. of days delay 365

- 43.2 If an amount certified is increased in a later certificate or as a result of an award by the Adjudicator or an Arbitrator, the Contractor shall be entitled to claim interest upon the delayed payment as set out in this clause. Interest shall be calculated from the date upon which the increased amount would have been certified in the absence of dispute.
- 43.3 Unless otherwise stated, all payments and deductions will be paid or charged in the proportions of currencies comprising the Contract Price.
- 43.4 Items of the Works for which no rate or price has been entered in will not be paid for by the Employer and shall be deemed covered by other rates and prices in the Contract.
- 44. Compensation Events
- 44.1 The following shall be Compensation Events:
 - (a) The Employer does not give access to a part of the Site by the Site Possession Date stated in the Contract Data.
 - (b) The Employer modifies the Schedule of Other Contractors in a way that affects the work of the Contractor under the Contract.
 - (c) The Project Manager orders a delay or does not issue Drawings, Specifications, or instructions required for execution of the Works on time.
 - (d) The Project Manager instructs the Contractor to uncover or to carry out additional tests upon work, which is then found to have no Defects.
 - (e) The Project Manager unreasonably does not approve a subcontract to be let.

- (f) Ground conditions are substantially more adverse than could reasonably have been assumed before issue of the Letter of Acceptance from the information issued to bidders (including the Site Investigation Reports), from information available publicly and from a visual inspection of the Site.
- (g) The Project Manager gives an instruction for dealing with an unforeseen condition, caused by the Employer, or additional work required for safety or other reasons.
- (h) Other contractors, public authorities, utilities, or the Employer do not perform work within the dates and other constraints stated in the Contract, and they cause delay or extra cost to the Contractor.
- (i) The advance payment is delayed.
- (j) The effects on the Contractor of any of the Employer's Risks.
- (k) The Project Manager or Employer unreasonably delays issuing a Certificate of Completion.
- (1) Other Compensation Events described in the Contract Data or determined by the Project Manager shall apply.
- 44.2 If a Compensation Event would cause additional cost or would prevent the work being completed before the Intended Completion Date, the Contract Price shall be increased and/or the Intended Completion Date shall be extended. The Project Manager shall decide whether and by how much the Contract Price shall be increased and whether and by how much the Intended Completion Date shall be extended.
- 44.3 As soon as information demonstrating the effect of each Compensation Event upon the Contractor's forecast cost has been provided by the Contractor, it shall be assessed by the Project Manager, and the Contract Price shall be adjusted accordingly following approval by the Employer. If the Contractor's forecast is deemed unreasonable, the Project Manager shall recommend adjustment of the Contract Price based on the Project Manager's own forecast. The Project Manager will assume that the Contractor will react competently and promptly to the event.
- 44.4 The Contractor shall not be entitled to compensation to the extent that the Employer's interests are adversely affected by the Contractor's not having given early warning or not having cooperated with the Project Manager.

- 45. Taxes and Duties
 45.1 The African Union is exempted from all direct taxes, and are exempted from customs duties in respect of articles imported or exported for its official use in conformity with the General Convention on Privileges and Immunities. Accordingly, the Contractor authorises the Commission of the African Union (AUC) to deduct from payments any amount representing such taxes or duties charged to the African Union by the Contractor. In the event that any taxing authority refuses to accept the African Union's exemption from such taxes or duties, the Contractor shall immediately consult with the AUC.
 - 45.2 A Contractor shall be entirely responsible for obtaining exemption for the African Union of all such taxes, duties, license fees, etc., incurred, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the AUC.
 - 45.3 The Employer may adjust the Contract Price on the recommendation of the Project Manager if taxes, duties, and other relevant levies are changed within the country specified for performance of the works, between the date 28 days before the submission of bids for the Contract and the date of the final Completion certificate. Taxes, duties and other levies that are reclaimable under the general exemption of the African Union from taxes and duties shall not give rise to any adjustment. Any adjustment to the Contract Price shall be the change in the amount of tax payable by the Contract Price or are a result of Clause 47.
- **46. Currencies** 46.1 Where payments are made in currencies other than US Dollars, the exchange rates used for calculating the amounts to be paid shall be the exchange rates stated in the Contractor's Bid.
- 47. Price 47.1 Prices shall be adjusted for fluctuations in the cost of inputs only if provided for and in the manner detailed in the Contract Data. If so provided, the amounts certified in each payment certificate shall be adjusted in accordance with the price adjustment provisions given in the Contract Data.
- **48. Retention** 48.1 The Employer shall retain from each payment due to the Contractor the retention percentage stated in the Contract Data until Completion of the whole of the Works.
 - 48.2 On completion of the whole of the Works, half of the total amount retained shall be repaid to the Contractor and half when the Defects Liability Period has passed and the Project Manager has certified that all Defects notified by the Project Manager to the Contractor before the end of this period have been corrected.
 - 48.3 On completion of the whole Works, the Contractor may substitute retention money with an "on demand" Bank guarantee.

- 49. Liquidated Damages49.1 The Contractor shall pay liquidated damages to the Employer at the rate per day stated in the Contract Data for each day that the Completion Date is later than the Intended Completion Date. The total amount of liquidated damages shall not exceed the amount defined in the Contract Data. The Employer may deduct liquidated damages from payments due to the Contractor. Payment of liquidated damages shall not affect the Contractor's liabilities.
 - 49.2 If the Intended Completion Date is extended after liquidated damages have been paid, the Project Manager shall correct any overpayment of liquidated damages by the Contractor by adjusting the next payment certificate. The Contractor shall be paid interest on the overpayment, calculated from the date of payment to the date of repayment, at the rates specified in Clause 43.1.
- **50. Bonus** 50.1 Unless otherwise stated in the Contract Data, the Contractor shall not be paid a bonus for early completion of the Works.
- 51. Advance Payment
 51.1 The Employer shall make advance payment to the Contractor of the amounts stated in the Contract Data by the date stated in the Contract Data, against provision by the Contractor of an Unconditional Bank Guarantee in a form and by a bank acceptable to the Employer in amounts and currencies equal to the advance payment. The Guarantee shall remain effective until the advance payment has been repaid, but the amount of the Guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amounts repaid by the Contractor. Interest will not be charged on the advance payment.
 - 51.2 The Contractor is to use the advance payment only to pay for Equipment, Plant, Materials, and mobilisation expenses required specifically for execution of the Contract. The Contractor shall demonstrate that advance payment has been used in this way by supplying copies of invoices or other documents to the Project Manager.
 - 51.3 The advance payment shall be repaid by deducting proportionate amounts from payments otherwise due to the Contractor, following the schedule of completed percentages of the Works on a payment basis. No account shall be taken of the advance payment or its repayment in assessing valuations of work done, Variations, price adjustments, Compensation Events, Bonuses, or Liquidated Damages.
- **52. Securities** 52.1 The Performance Security in the form of an unconditional Bank Guarantee given in the bidding documents shall be provided to the Employer no later than the date specified in the Letter of Acceptance. The Bank Guarantee shall be issued either (a) by a bank located in a Member State of the African Union, or a foreign bank through a correspondent bank located in the Country specified for performance of the works, or (b), with the agreement of the Employer directly by a foreign bank acceptable to the

Employer. The Guarantee shall be denominated in the types and proportions of the currencies in which the Contract Price is payable. The Performance Security shall be valid until a date 28 days after the date of issue of the Certificate of Completion.

- 53. Dayworks53.1 If applicable, the Dayworks rates in the Contractor's Bid shall be used for small additional amounts of work only when the Project Manager has given written instructions in advance for additional work to be paid for in that way.
 - 53.2 All work to be paid for as Dayworks shall be recorded by the Contractor on forms approved by the Project Manager. Each completed form shall be verified and signed by the Project Manager within two days of the work being done.
 - 53.3 The Contractor shall be paid for Dayworks subject to obtaining signed Dayworks forms.
- 54. Cost of Repairs54.1 Loss or damage to the Works or Materials to be incorporated in the Works between the Start Date and the end of the Defects Correction periods shall be remedied by the Contractor at the Contractor's cost if the loss or damage arises from the Contractor's acts or omissions.

E. Finishing the Contract

- **55. Completion** 55.1 The Contractor shall request the Project Manager to issue a certificate of Completion of the Works, and the Project Manager will do so upon both the Project Manager and the Employer deciding that the work is completed.
- **56. Taking Over** 56.1 The Employer shall take over the Site and the Works within the period specified in the contract data after the issuance of a Certificate of Completion.
- 57. Final Account
 57.1 The Contractor shall supply the Project Manager with a detailed account of the total amount that the Contractor considers payable under the Contract before the end of the Defects Liability Period. The Project Manager shall issue a Defects Liability Certificate and certify any final payment that is due to the Contractor within 56 days of receiving the Contractor's account if it is correct and complete. If it is not, the Project Manager shall issue within 56 days a schedule that states the scope of the corrections or additions that are necessary. If the Final Account is still unsatisfactory after it has been resubmitted, the Project Manager shall decide on the amount payable to the Contractor and issue a payment certificate.
- 58. Operating and Maintenance Manuals58.1 If "as built" Drawings and/or operating and maintenance manuals are required, the Contractor shall supply them by the dates stated in the Contract Data.

59. Termination 59.1 The Employer or the Contractor may terminate the Contract if the other party causes a fundamental breach of the Contract.

- 59.2 Fundamental breaches of Contract shall include, but shall not be limited to, the following:
 - (a) the Contractor stops work for 28 days when no stoppage of work is shown on the current Program and the stoppage has not been authorised by the Project Manager;
 - (b) the Project Manager instructs the Contractor to delay the progress of the Works, and the instruction is not withdrawn within 28 days;
 - (c) the Employer or the Contractor is made bankrupt or goes into liquidation other than for a reconstruction or amalgamation;
 - (d) a payment certified by the Project Manager is not paid by the Employer to the Contractor within 90 days of the date of the Project Manager's certificate;
 - (e) the Project Manager gives Notice that failure to correct a particular Defect is a fundamental breach of Contract and the Contractor fails to correct it within a reasonable period of time determined by the Project Manager;
 - (f) the Contractor does not maintain a Security, which is required; and
 - (g) at any time during the Contract, the Contractor has delayed the completion of the Works, as measured by the Program, by the number of days for which the maximum amount of liquidated damages can be paid, as defined in the Contract Data.
 - (h) if the Contractor, in the judgement of the Employer has engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive or obstructive practices in competing for or in executing the Contract.

For the purpose of this paragraph:

"corrupt practice"¹⁷ is the offering, giving, receiving or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;

"fraudulent practice"¹⁸ is any act or omission including a misrepresentation that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;

"collusive practice"¹⁹ is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;

"coercive practice"²⁰ is impairing or harming or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;

"obstructive practice" is deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering or concealing of evidence material to any investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede any investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation;

- 59.3 When either party to the Contract gives notice of a breach of Contract to the Project Manager for a cause other than those listed under Clause 59.2 above, the Project Manager shall decide whether the breach is fundamental or not.
- 59.4 Notwithstanding the above, the Employer may terminate the Contract for convenience.
- 59.5 If the Contract is terminated, the Contractor shall stop work immediately, make the Site safe and secure, and leave the Site as soon as reasonably possible.

60. Payment upon Termination

60.1 If the Contract is terminated because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the Contractor, the Project Manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done and Materials ordered

¹⁷ "another party" refers to an officer of the AU acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, "officer of the AU" includes staff and employees of other organisations taking or reviewing procurement decisions.

¹⁸ a "party" refers to any officer of the AU; the terms "benefit" and "obligation" relate to the procurement process or contract execution; and the "act or omission" is intended to influence the procurement process or contract execution.

less advance payments received up to the date of the issue of the certificate and less the percentage to apply to the value of the work not completed, as indicated in the Contract Data. Additional Liquidated Damages shall not apply. If the total amount due to the Employer exceeds any payment due to the Contractor, the difference shall be a debt payable to the Employer.

- 60.2 If the Contract is terminated for the Employer's convenience or because of a fundamental breach of Contract by the Employer, the Project Manager shall issue a certificate for the value of the work done, Materials ordered, the reasonable cost of removal of Equipment, repatriation of the Contractor's personnel employed solely on the Works, and the Contractor's costs of protecting and securing the Works, and less advance payments received up to the date of the certificate.
- **61. Property** 61.1 All Materials on the Site, Plant, Equipment, Temporary Works, and Works shall be deemed to be the property of the Employer if the Contract is terminated because of the Contractor's default.
- 62. Release from Performance62.1 If the Contract is frustrated by the outbreak of war or by any other event of force majeure entirely outside the control of either the Employer or the Contractor, the Project Manager shall certify that the Contract has been frustrated. The Contractor shall make the Site safe and stop work as quickly as possible after receiving this certificate and shall be paid for all work carried out before receiving it and for any work carried out afterwards to which a commitment was made.

¹⁹ "parties" refers to any participants in the procurement process (including officers of the AU) attempting to establish bid prices at artificial, non competitive levels.

²⁰ a "party" refers to any participant in the procurement process or contract execution.

Section VI. Contract Data

CC Clause 1.1 Contract: The name and Procurement Number of the Contract are: Design and Build of a 100 kw Solar PV Generating System to drive climate smart technology (hydroponic/aquaponic/drip irrigation) application in Addare/Niger. Procurement Number: 2/AUDA/DPDC/ENV/RFB/W/2020

Contractor: The Contractor is TBD [insert Name and address of Contractor].

Country specified for the performance of the Works: The Country is Niger

Defects Liability Period: The Defects liability Period is 365 calendar days.

Employer: The Employer is

African Union Development Agency - NEPAD Private Bag 218, Halfway House Midrand 1685 Johannesburg, South Africa

Attention: Dr. Ibrahim Assane Mayaki <u>Chief Executive Officer</u> Tel. +27 (0) 11 2563600 Email: <u>procurement@nepd.org</u>

Intended Completion Date: The Intended Completion Date for the whole of the Works shall be 4 months (including maintenance & operation period) from contract signature/advance payment [insert date]. [If different dates are specified for completion of the Works by section ("sectional completion"), these dates should be listed here.]

Project Manager: The Project Manager is National Project Steering Committee Chairperson *[insert full name and address]*.

Site: The Site is located at Addare, Niger

Start Date: The Start Date shall be TBD[insert date].

Works: The Works consist of:

- a) Project design and technical specification plan;
- b) Procurement of plant & equipment;
- c) Installation and Commissioning; and
- d) Operation and maintenance.

CC Clause 2.3(9) The following documents also form part of the Contract:

	 a) Schedule of Operating and Maintenance Manuals - see CC Clause 58; b) Schedule of Other Contractors - See CC Clause 8; c) The Schedule of Key Personnel - CC Clause 9; d) Site Investigation Reports - see CC Clause 14.
CC Clause 8.1	The Schedule of Other Contractors attached at Appendix [appendix number] shall form part of the Contract.
CC Clause 9.1	The Schedule of Key Personnel attached at Appendix [appendix number] shall form part of the Contract.
CC Clause 13.1	The minimum insurance cover shall be:
	(a) The minimum insurance cover for the loss of or damage to the Works, Plant and Materials shall be <i>[insert percentage (usually 110%)]</i> of the Contract Sum with a maximum deductible of <i>[insert amount and currency]</i> .
	(b) The minimum insurance cover for loss or damage to Equipment is <i>[insert amount and currency]</i> with a maximum deductible of <i>[amount and currency]</i>
	 (c) The minimum insurance cover for loss or damage to property (except the Works, Plant, Materials and Equipment) is <i>[insert amount and currency]</i> with no deductible
	(d) The minimum insurance cover for personal injury or death is <i>[insert amount and currency]</i> with no deductible
	(e) In addition the Contractor shall be required to provide all insurance cover as required by the laws and regulations of the Country specified for the performance of the Works.
CC Clause 14.1	 The following Site Investigation Reports attached at Appendix <i>[appendix number]</i> shall form part of the Contract: a) The village Addare is farming community located less than 10km of the Torodi commune which is part of Say Department of Tillabéry region. The village has population of around 5 000 in which the main activities are agriculture and livestock. There is school with 2 00 students and 6 teachers with no structural building for academic learning, currently they learn under the tree shed. There is also a clinic that provide basic health services with 2 staff. The clinic has small solar panel to power the refrigerator. The village has also small solar panel (1kw) to pump water to overhead stored tank for drinking. b) The site is a grass land area with solar radiation (DNI = 2 236 kWh/m2, GHI = 2 257 kWh/m2).

CC Clause 21.1	The Site Possession Date shall be [date]. [If the Site is made available by section, the different dates should be listed here.] 7 calendar days after Contract Signature
CC Clause 25.2	Fees and types of reimbursable expenses to be paid to the Adjudicator: TBD [list fee and expenses rates].
CC Clause 25.3	Arbitration will be conducted under the rules and regulations of UNCITRAL Rule.
	Arbitration shall take place at the seat or legal place of arbitration shall be Headquarters of the Union or any other place where the Union has its Organ/Institution/Offices. The AU shall provide hearing space free of charge.
CC Clause 26.1	Appointing Authority for the Adjudicator is: Niger Institution of Engineers or equivalent Body.
CC Clause 27.1	The Contractor shall submit a revised Program for the Works within 5 <i>working</i> days of delivery of the Letter of Acceptance.
CC Clause 27.3	The period between Program updates shall be 10 working days.
	The amount to be withheld for late submission of an updated Program is <i>US\$2,500.00</i>
CC Clause 35.1	The Defects Liability Period is 365 calendar days.
CC Clause 44.1(l)	The following events shall also be Compensation Events: [list any additional events not listed in Conditions of Contract Clause 44.1]
CC Clause 47.1	The Contract <i>is not</i> subject to price adjustment in accordance with Clause 47 of the Conditions of Contract.
CC Clause 48.1	The proportion of payments retained is 5% percent.
CC Clause 49.1	The liquidated Damages for the whole of the Works shall be 0.01 % of the Contract Price per day.
	The maximum amount of liquidated damages for the whole of the Works shall be five percent (5%) of the final Contract Price.
CC Clause 51.1	The Advance Payment will be <i>[insert currency and amount or 30% of the contract sum]</i> and will be paid to the Contractor no later than <i>[insert date]</i> .
CC Clause 52.1	The Performance Security shall be for a minimum amount equivalent to ten percent (10%) of the Contract Price:

	The Performance Security shall be a certified banker's cheque or an Unconditional Bank Guarantee in the form presented in Section X of the Bidding Document.
CC Clause 56.1	The Employer shall take over the Site and the Works within 10 working days after the issuance of a Certificate of Completion.
CC Clause 58.1	The date by which "as built" drawings are required is TBD [insert date].
	The date by which operating and maintenance manuals are required is TBD [insert date(s)].
	[If no as built drawings are required, delete this Clause reference from the Contract Data.]
CC Clause 58.2	The amount to be withheld for failure to deliver "as built" drawings and/or operating and maintenance manuals by the dates required is US\$5,000.00.
CC 60.1	The percentage to apply to the value of the work not completed, representing the Employer's additional cost for completing the Works, is five percent (5%).

Section VII. Specifications

<u>SECTION B</u>

Background and Rationale

AUDA-NEPAD applies multi sector and multi stakeholder approach to design scope of work with key national and sub national government networks, civil society, academia, private sector, communities and development partners. The approach aims to identify key issues pertinent to the identified development problems and establish their connections, taking particularly into consideration a spatial - territorial dimension in order to promote a holistic and integrated development approach. Tackling these issues in an integrated manner allows the common definition of one solution implemented by several stakeholders in a coordinated manner trough specific process that is scalable and replicable.

The challenge of access to energy has been recognized at the level of the UN and the African Union through the Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs) and the AU Agenda 2063 respectively. Goal 7 of the SDGs aims at achieving universal access to affordable, reliable, sustainable and modern energy by 2030, while Agenda 2063 Goal 1, 7 and 10 has targets for an increase of 50% in electricity generation, 50% distribution and 70% of Africans having access to electricity by 2023.

Furthermore, low levels of resilience to the threats such as Covid-19 in rural communities is a persistent challenge across Africa. Key among the causes of vulnerability of rural communities across the continent is low productive capacity, especially a lack of access to key production drivers such as energy and water. Immediate resilience building interventions to respond to Covid-19 externalities are urgently required to cushion rural households from anticipated severe short to long-term impacts. An effective response to the Covid-19 shock calls for simple, yet impactful, quick turn-around interventions that mitigate impacts in the short-term while building resilience in the long term. This project will deploy renewable energy and climate-smart technologies to rapidly and sustainably increase productivity of food and feed production systems in smallholder farming communities to boost food and nutrition security and incomes. The project aims to increase access to clean water and sanitation, lightening of primary health care centre to accelerate service delivery in the fight against current pandemic and beyond.

Objectives of the Assignment

AUDA-NEPAD recognizes the limitation of the traditional 'silo' approach to development and promotes a more sustainable integrated delivery model for greater transformative and sustained impacts at the community, national and regional spheres. Therefore, the objective is to empower rural communities: socio economic, resilience and quality of life. The village Addare is a farming community located less than 10km of the Torodi commune which is part of Say Department of Tillabéry region. The village has population of around 5 000 in which the main activities are agriculture and livestock. There is school with 2 00 students and 6 teachers with no structural building for academic learning, currently they learn under the tree shed. There is also a clinic that provide basic health services with 2 staff. The clinic has small solar panel to power the refrigerator. The village has also small solar panel (1kw) to pump water to overhead stored tank for drinking.

SECTION C

Scope of Work

The scope of work is to design, supply and install an integrated 100 Kw solar PV system for powering a community health care centre and driving community water supply, and a climate smart food and feed production system in Addare, Niger. The Service Provider shall assess, design and provide all construction, installation and materials requirement with respect to specification in quantity of each of the components of the system, with overall engineering design integrating the system components.

The system should be integrated, scalable and cost effective with local content were possible, sustainable in terms of resource use, maximise synergies and minimize waste of environmental resources. To ensure affordability, scalability and sustainability of hydroponic/aquaculture systems/drip irrigation, the installations will as much as possible make use of locally available materials and will include the training of farmers and other local community organization to enable further adaptations of the technology to suit farmers at various levels.

Scope of work covers:

- Design, engineering, supply, installation, testing, commissioning of a Solar Photovoltaic power generation (100kw) system – with backup batteries of 48 volts to power a local health centre, drive water supply and climate smart irrigation.
- Design, engineering, drilling, supply and installation of borehole for water supply or efficient optimization of existing water facility.
- Design, supply and install a cost-effective, commercial-scale climate smart system for sustainable production of food and feed (hydroponics/aquaponics/drip irrigation or any other technology suitable to the project location for sustainable food and feed production;
- Assess, develop and provide the commercial cost in quantity of each material and components required for setting up solar PV of 100kw power generation unit, water supply and irrigation systems including; construction, installation, earthwork preparations and reticulation with respect to specification;
- Develop and provide a detailed implementable business model of this technology for replication and expansion
- The Bidder has to submit all the technical documents of all the components they intend to use.
- The successful Bidder need to submit/propose 3 different designs in order to maximize the energy generation of Solar PV power plant
- Structure and civil design including wind load analysis,
- Solar PV system design (No. of strings, No of inverters, series parallel combinations)
- Simulation results for the Energy Generation
- AUDA NEPAD will choose option and finalize the execution of the project
- The Bidder need to submit the plan of execution and mention the deadline
- All the permissions/approvals/clearances shall be provided by the Host government
- For any changes in specifications of any of components prior approval shall be taken from the AUDA NEPAD
- The successful bidder shall be responsible for galvanic isolation of Solar PV rooftop power plants whose capacity is equal or more than 100 Kw with electrical grid

Technical Description of the proposed assignment

The site is a grass land area with solar radiation (DNI = 2.236 kWh/m2, GHI = 2.257 kWh/m2). The proposed work is to set up 100kw solar power generation output, drilling of borehole or equipping a suitable existing water source. The solar energy system will provide power for a local health care center, water pumping and reticulation for community use, and water pumping for irrigation.

The Solar PV system

- The planned electrical supply system is a 100kw solar power generation and a suitable battery bank
- The PV power system will be designed to yield the maximum possible amount of energy on yearly average basis

- The PV support structure should be designed to a fixed tilt angle equal to the latitude angle of the site.
- The overall system design and its components shall be commercially available and shall conform to acceptable commercial and international industry practice
- All connection and fits for power supply for the health centre as per design and acceptable national minimum standards.

Water facility equipment and component

- Borehole drilling, casing, yield testing, equipping as per design
- Submersible pump (h/p specified as per the design)
- Minimum acceptable borehole yield per hour as per the design
- Pipes and fittings as per the design
- Reservoir storage tank of minimum capacity 20000 litres
- Steel support structure platform for water reservoir with ladder fitted (minimum height to be specified for each design
- Water supply and reticulation for the health care centre, community supply points for domestic and livestock use as specified by design.
- All piping, fittings, couplings and taps.

Climate smart irrigation facility

- A suitable climate smart irrigation system (Hydroponic/aquaponics/drip irrigation or equivalent) for commercial scale production of food and feed;
- Hydroponic/aquaponics production facility or equivalent, including standard growing tunnels where appropriate as per design
- Acceptable materials for growing units for crop production may include, appropriate commercial grade shed netting, commercial grade greenhouse film/plastic (minimum 200 micron), treated poles, and commercial grade steel frames, fish tanks as per design.
- Commercial scale drip irrigation system for alhectare plot, including tanks, fertigation systems, pipes, drip lines, filters.
- All assumption should be stated in a way that allows calculations to be repeated. If specialized & certified software is used, such software should be named, and outputs provided
- Personnel safety during installations, operational and maintenance of the system after the start of operation shall be an integral part of the system design.
- The tenderer shall define in his offer the required human safety rules both before and

The Works to be completed, apart from the general requirements of the Contractor and all other tasks required to commission and maintain a working integrated plant, shall include the following:

1. Civil Works

- o a) Setting out
- o b) Clearing
- o c) Levelling
- o d) Foundations
- o e) Steel Support Structures
- o f) Trenching

○ 2. Major Equipment

a) Photovoltaic modules

b) Inverters

c) Power Control Unit

- d) Difference size of cabling
- e) as stated in the Scope of Work above
 - 0

3. Electrical System

- a) DC Reticulation
 - i) Cables
 - ii) Ducting / trays
 - iii) Termination
 - iv) Connection of modules in strings
 - v) Connection of strings to combiner boxes or directly to inverter (as appropriate)

b) Low Voltage AC reticulation

- i) Cables
- ii) Ducting / trays /trenches
- iii) Termination
- iv) Switchboard(s)
- v) Protection devices
- vi) Connection inverters to switchboard
- Combiner boxes (if appropriate)
- 5. Lightning protection & Earthing
- 6) Water facility equipment and component
 - i) Submersible pumps (h/p specified)
 - ii) Pipes of different sizes (2inches, 5inches etc)
 - iii) Reservoir storage tank of capacity 20000 litres
 - iv) Steel support structure platform with ladder fitted
 - v) Fittings, couplings and taps.
- 7) Climate smart irrigation facility
 - i) Tanks, pumps, pipes and fittings as per design
 - ii) Growing units as per the design
 - iii) Drip irrigation system as per the design

<u>Section D</u>

CONSIDERATIONS AND TECHNICAL REQUIREMENTS FOR THE DELIVERY OF THE SCOPE OF WORK ABOVE.

Quality and reliability testing of modules: The EPC shall provide an effective mechanism for testing all installed PV systems/Modules and drilled borehole prior to commissioning and handover.

Operation and Maintenance:

The Contractor shall be responsible for the effective day-to-day monitoring, operating and maintaining of the plant for 1 month after Practical Completion and successful handover to the designated authority of the respective government.

Warranty

The contractor should provide warranty of the devices and equipment. Solar PV Modules should have a minimum 12year product guarantee and 30year linear power guarantee. Energy storage to have a minimum warranty of 10 years retaining 60% or usable energy.

Training

The Contractor is required to develop an effective training programme for the three sites for the duration of the O&M period to assist with operations, maintenance and safety related tasks of the facility, not to exceed five (5) person. The contractor is also required to produce reference manual for the O&M as well as training programme.

Transport Claims

The bidders must allow for and include, in each installation rate, an amount which will cover their cost of transportation of labour, equipment and material to and from the relevant project site. No additional transport claims will be allowed. Government will facilitate custom clearance (tax/duty exemption) and logistics.

Contract to cover all works

This contract shall cover all work required for the complete and successful operation of the integrated system.

Section E

Quality assurance, standards and Codes of Practice:

a) All hardware and/or material required for the complete PV Installation shall comply with the relevant standards. The following national and international standards shall be complied with and in this sequence of preference.

International Electrical Commission (IEC)

British Standard (BS)

Deutsche International Standard (DIN) (If available in English)

All equipment, installation material and work procedure shall meet the international standard organization of operation viz

ISO 9001 and ISO 14001.

b) Atmospheric and Environmental Conditions

The entire installation and every component thereof shall be designed, constructed and installed for long and trouble-free operation under the atmospheric and environmental conditions outlined in accordance to international standard of operation with specific attention given to the wind speed / pressure.

As part of the task, the contractor shall develop and provide the following relevant information:

- a. Provide the installation procedure for the PV system
- b. Provide quality assurance/quality control (QA/QC) specification and installation manual
- c. Provide the engineering design in (3D)
- d. Provide the operation safety and maintenance guide

- e. Provide solution on feature on back-up system
- f. Electrical one-line diagram for the PV system.

The contractor in fulfilment of the set objectives shall provide a detail cost for the provision of this quantity of goods and services such as;

- a. Assess and provide the cost of Photovoltaic (PV) panels, specifying the dimension, power out-put for each panel and quantity in numbers that can generate up to 100 kW of electricity as required.
- b. Assess and provide cost of support structures for PV panel installation with quantity in numbers specified
- c. Provide the cost of inverters with quantity in numbers specified
- d. Provide the installation cost
- e. Provide the cost of site clearing, land scaping, earthworks and wire mesh fencing of the installation area.
- f. Assess and provide all cost and quantity in numbers of all cables of different sizes (1.5mm, 4mm, 10mm, etc) required for system integration
- g. Provide all labour and manhour cost
- h. Provide the cost in number of quantities all installation accessories
- i. Provide the cost of all components and material as listed in section (C) in the scope of work

Section F

Reticulation network systems strategy if required in table 1 scope of work

The contractor shall:

- a. Provide the cost in numbers of quantity with specification for the reticulation network
- b. Provide a detail cost in numbers of quantity the reticulation poles (with respect to material specification)
- c. Provide in detail labour services and manhour cost
- d. Provide the cost in number of quantities of all installation accessories

Section G

Efficient optimization of existing water facility/drilling of borehole water supply integrated with solar system to drive the process and reticulated for access to clean water and sanitation to the community, clinics, schools and production system;

The contractor in fulfilment of this task, shall assess and provide the commercial cost to each quantity of goods and services such as;

- a. Provide the borehole drilling cost (where applicable)
- b. Assess and provide the cost of the submersible pumps (h/p specified)
- c. Assess and provide the cost of the water reticulation pipes
- d. Assess and provide the cost of fabricated reservoir water storage tank of capacity 20000litres

e. Assess and provide the cost of construction of the steel support structure platform with ladder fitted for maintenance purposes.

f. Assess and provide the cost of all fittings, couplings and taps.

g. Assess and provide the cost of all installations, reticulation accessories, earthworks/surface dressing and wire mesh fencing of the installation area.

<u>Section H</u>

The contractor shall assess and provide the specified commercial cost in quantity for each of the construction, installations equipment and materials required for the setting up of selected climate smart agricultural technology (hydroponic/ aquaponic/drip irrigation) as applicable to the location including all earthwork preparations.

The contractor in fulfilment of this task shall;

 a. Assess and provide the commercial cost in quantity to each of the construction and installation equipment required in setting up selected technology as applicable to project location for food and feed production.
 b. Assess and provide the cost of all earthwork preparations.

Section I

The contractor obligations

The contractor will be entirely responsible for carrying out the assignment, including the services performed by the subcontractors and employees, if any. The contractor will ensure the adequate fulfilment of the tasks envisaged under the assignment within the allocated timeframe.

The contractor work will be supervised by national focal persons of the respective countries and will work closely with the staff of the AUDA-NEPAD (renewable energy unit), project steering committee and other working groups during the implementation of the assignment.

Obligations of AUDA-NEPAD

The AUDA-NEPAD (Environment unit, Energy Unit) and the National Project Steering Committee will facilitate contacts between the Service Provider and the Ministries of Agriculture, Energy and Environment where necessary for the realization of this project.

AUDA-NEPAD will provide one round of pre-bidding presentation to the bidders.

AUDA-NEPAD will provide technical guidance of the quality of the equipment and overall supervision of the projects

Supervision.

Supervision will be provided by the national focal persons of each country.

Accountability

In undertaking this exercise, the contractor will be expected to frequently exchange and interact with the AUDA-NEPAD Heads of Environment and Renewable Energy Units in the course of this assignment and get clearance of each deliverable before moving onto the next one.

COPYRIGHTS

All the information and data obtained during this assignment under this TOR is the property of the AUDA-NEPAD Agency and cannot be submitted, distributed to or used by any other party, unless arranged otherwise.

REQUIREMENTS

The contractor is required to submit a detailed work plan that reflects a clear deliverable of the services required.

Section VIII. Drawings

N/A

Section IX. Schedule of Activities

- a) Project design and technical specification plan;
- b) Procurement of plant & equipment;
- c) Installation and Commissioning; and
- d) Operation and maintenance.

Section X. Security Forms

Notes on Forms of Securities

Samples of acceptable forms of Bid, Performance, and Advance Payment Securities are annexed. Bidders should not complete the Performance and Advance Payment Security forms at this time. Only the successful Bidder will be required to provide Performance and Advance Payment Securities in accordance with the form acceptable to the Employer.

Annex A Form: Bid Security (Bank Guarantee)

Whereas, *[name of Bidder]* (hereinafter called "the Bidder") has submitted his Bid dated *[date]* for the construction of *[name of Contract and procurement Number]* (hereinafter called "the Bid").

Know all people by these presents that We [name of Bank] of [name of country] having our registered office at [address] (hereinafter called "the Bank") are bound unto name of Employer] (hereinafter called "the Employer") in the sum of [amount]²¹ for which payment well and truly to be made to the said Employer, the Bank binds itself, its successors, and assigns by these presents.

Sealed with the Common Seal of the said Bank this [day] day of [month], [year].

The conditions of this obligation are:

- (1) If, after Bid opening, the Bidder withdraws his Bid during the period of Bid validity specified in the Form of Bid; or
- (2) If the Bidder having been notified of the acceptance of his Bid by the Employer during the period of Bid validity:
 - (a) fails or refuses to execute the Form of Agreement in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders, if required; or
 - (b) fails or refuses to furnish the Performance Security, in accordance with the Instruction to Bidders; or
 - (c) does not accept the correction of the Bid Price pursuant to Clause 27,

we undertake to pay to the Employer up to the above amount upon receipt of his first written demand, without the Employer's having to substantiate his demand, provided that in his demand the Employer will note that the amount claimed by him is due to him owing to the occurrence of one or any of the three conditions, specifying the occurred condition or conditions.

This Guarantee will remain in force up to and including *[date]* the date 28 days after the deadline for submission of bids as stated in the Instructions to Bidders or as it may be extended by the Employer, notice of which extension(s) to the Bank is hereby waived. Any demand in respect of this Guarantee should reach the Bank not later than the above date.

Date _____ Signature and seal of the Bank _____

Name and Title of authorised signatory

²¹ The Bidder should insert the amount of the Guarantee in words and figures denominated in the currency of the Bid. This figure should be the same as shown in Clause 16.1 of the Instructions to Bidders.

Annex B Form : Performance Security - Unconditional Bank Guarantee

To: [name and address of Employer]

Whereas [name and address of Contractor] (hereinafter called "the Contractor") has undertaken, in pursuance of Contract No. [procurement number] dated [date] to execute [name and Procurement Number of Contract and brief description of Works] (hereinafter called "the Contract");

And whereas it has been stipulated by you in the said Contract that the Contractor shall furnish you with a Bank Guarantee by a recognised bank for the sum specified therein as security for compliance with his obligations in accordance with the Contract;

And whereas we have agreed to give the Contractor such a Bank Guarantee;

Now therefore we hereby affirm that we are the Guarantor and responsible to you, on behalf of the Contractor, up to a total of *[amount of Guarantee] [amount in words]*,²² such sum being payable in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, and we undertake to pay you, upon your first written demand and without cavil or argument, any sum or sums within the limits of *[amount of Guarantee]* as aforesaid without your needing to prove or to show grounds or reasons for your demand for the sum specified therein.

We hereby waive the necessity of your demanding the said debt from the Contractor before presenting us with the demand.

We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract or of the Works to be performed thereunder or of any of the Contract documents which may be made between you and the Contractor shall in any way release us from any liability under this Guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition, or modification.

This Guarantee shall be valid until a date 90 days from the date of issue of the Certificate of Completion.

Signature and seal of the Guarantor

Name of Bank	
--------------	--

Address	

²² An amount is to be inserted by the Guarantor, representing the percentage of the Contract Price specified in the Contract, and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the Contract or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer.

Annex C Form: Bank Guarantee for Advance Payment

To: [name and address of Employer]

[name and Procurement Number of Contract]

Sir / Madam:

In accordance with the provisions of the Conditions of Contract, Clause 51 ("Advance Payment") of the above-mentioned Contract, *[name and address of Contractor]* (hereinafter called "the Contractor") shall deposit with *[name of Employer]* a Bank Guarantee to guarantee his proper and faithful performance under the said Clause of the Contract in an amount of *[amount of Guarantee] [amount in words]*.²³

We, the [Bank or Financial Institution], as instructed by the Contractor, agree unconditionally and irrevocably to guarantee as primary obligator and not as Surety merely, the payment to [name of Employer] on his first demand without whatsoever right of objection on our part and without his first claim to the Contractor, in the amount not exceeding [amount of Guarantee] [amount in words].²⁴

We further agree that no change or addition to or other modification of the terms of the Contract or of Works to be performed thereunder or of any of the Contract documents which may be made between *[name of Employer]* and the Contractor, shall in any way release us from any liability under this Guarantee, and we hereby waive notice of any such change, addition, or modification.

This Guarantee shall remain valid and in full effect from the date of the advance payment under the Contract until *[name of Employer]* receives full repayment of the same amount from the Contractor.

Yours truly,

Signature and seal: _____

Name of Bank:	

Address:		

²³ An amount is to be inserted by the Bank or Financial Institution representing the amount of the Advance Payment, and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the Advance Payment as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer.

²⁴ An amount is to be inserted by the Bank or Financial Institution representing the amount of the Advance Payment, and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the Advance Payment as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Employer.